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After two years  

of continuous capacity 

restrictions related to 

Covid, we have been 

blessed to meet freely 

together as the family 

of God since March  

of 2022. 
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Mission Vision
Mission  
Morningstar Christian Fellowship is a 

multicultural  

FAMILY OF FAMILIES  
who exists to obey the commands of Christ  

to multiply his disciples  
by establishing churches.

Vision 
To form a movement of 
INTERGENERATIONAL disciples 

WHO WILL grow 
in
in their families and communities 
to establish churches  
in the GTA and beyond.

and make 
him 
knownCHRIST

/  
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LETTER FROM THE

I concluded last year’s annual report with this reminder: “we continue to trust that Jesus will 
continue to build up and use us at Morningstar, for his glory, in the GTA and beyond!” And 
our confidence in Christ for the year 2022 proved not to be in vain. What a blessed year for 
us as a church!

After two years of continuous capacity restrictions related to Covid, we have been blessed 
to meet freely together as the family of God since March of 2022. Given all the challenges 
of individual isolation, new spiritual habits, and difficulties even just “being the church”—
our vision for the year was to get Back to the Basics. 

In April and May, our message series “Out of Many, One” was accompanied by practical 
workshops and churchwide surveys, seeking to consider together what it means to be the 
family of God to each other. We were reminded that we are saved through faith in Christ 
alone, but we are not saved to be alone. We are adopted into Christ’s family, with a great 
diversity of other believers from different backgrounds, different perspectives, and even 
varied convictions on some issues. Yet Jesus himself prays that we will all be a unified 
“one” body, so that the world will see Him through the lens of our sacrificial, supernatural 
Christian community.

Our summer series considered the opening chapters of Genesis and such foundational 
subjects as “Who is God?” and “Why do we exist?” and “What is marriage?” Our guest 
speaker Andre Schutten not only ably addressed the biblical definition of marriage from 
Genesis, but also hosted an excellent Q&A afterward on how to live out our Christian faith 
in an age where historic Christian beliefs are not shared by the society in which we live.

From Fall 2022, until our coming Vision Sunday in March 2023, our intention has been to 
answer the crucial question, “What is the gospel?” as we study together through the book 
of Galatians. It is nothing short of awesome to be regularly reminded of what Christ has 
done for us, and so who we now are in Christ.

In the midst of it all, we have seen God at work in and through Morningstar. We have been 
blessed to see the Lord add many to our church through our baptism and membership 
classes. Several new Connection Groups have been formed. Regular reports from our 
Global Missions Team have reconnected us with the gospel efforts our church supports 
around the globe. Our Children’s Ministry, though going through a change in leadership, 
has regained momentum and has seen an influx of children, families and volunteers 
participating each Sunday. And, as you will see in this Annual Report, Christ has continued 
to build His church in many other ways as well.

As you review our Annual Report, and as we all look together to the new year 2023, the 
words of the great missionary William Carey come to mind: “Expect great things from 
God. Attempt great things for God.” May each of us attempt great things for our wonderful 
Savior, in and through his church at Morningstar. And as we do so, we can expect great 
things from Him, because nothing is impossible for Him!

Justin Huffman

JUSTIN  
HUFFMAN

SENIOR PASTOR



TO GOD BE THE GLORY

5

“For the word of God is alive and active.  Sharper 

than any double-edged sword, it penetrates even to 

dividing soul and spirit, joints and marrow; it judges 

the thoughts and attitudes of the heart”.   

Hebrews 4:12

HIS



EXECUTIVE PASTOR
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LETTER FROM THE

Six years ago, I was asked to prayerfully consider taking the Executive Pastor position, 
and while I had a fairly good understating of what the role involved the actual experience 
is always different than one imagines. For us here at Morningstar that means the Executive 
Pastor wears several hats. 

Morningstar is first and foremost a church and as such I am one of several Pastors on 
an amazing ministry team who each week seek to meet the spiritual, emotional and even 
financial needs of our members and the community that surrounds us. That is not only 
a calling but a privilege. I rarely feel like an “executive pastor” when I am wearing this 
hat. And I am happy about that because that is what God has called me to do first and 
foremost, be an under shepherd to his sheep. It’s not uncommon for me to be huddled in 
the counselling room speaking and praying with someone about some type of life issue 
and then the next day be out on a visit with our Care Team in a shut-in member’s home or 
a hospital room singing hymns and reading the Scriptures. The next day leading a weekly 
zoom prayer meeting with ten or more of our faithful spiritual intercessors. Having spiritual 
conversations with a young believer over coffee in a Tim Hortons. Or, sitting at the table 
on a zoom call in a Global Missions Team meeting, a Refugee Committee meeting, or our 
Elder Board meeting offering my input and assisting wherever I can.   

On a given Sunday, you can find me in the Guest Suite at the end of both services, not as 
the Executive Pastor, but one of the Pastors there to greet and welcome any visitor brave 
enough to come and introduce themselves. Many do, and in 2022 we saw God send us 
many visitors who became regular attenders and members.

Executive Pastors traditionally are also responsible for overseeing the Administrative staff 
of a church. All of our Admin. team here at Morningstar are also members of our church, 
so that bit of fact means we are brothers and sisters serving on the same team for the 
same cause to the glory of God. This too will often challenge me to not simply see my role 
as just the “executive pastor” to our office staff but rather a Pastor, brother who is to come 
alongside others and encourage them in their walk with Jesus as they assist the Ministry 
Team, and serve the people of Morningstar. Our admin team has done this very well.

And then there is the building, yes, the facilities that allow us to carry out weekly so much 
of what we do as the people of Morningstar. This too comes under the oversight of the 
Executive Pastor. Managing this is a huge task and could not be done apart from the 
faithful men, women and staff who guide me and share in the decisions that need to be 
made to ensure that the building remains up to date and functioning well. No seminary 
education prepares you for this, therefore I am so thankful for the people God has put 
around me to enable me to serve in this capacity. 

So, as you flip through the pages and read this annual report you will catch a glimpse of 
some of this not only in the reports with my name attached but also hidden amongst other 
reports. Thank you, Morningstar, for allowing me the privilege of serving you as an under 
shepherd.

Grace & Peace 

DENNIS  
CAMPBELL



“My lips praise you 

because your faithful 

love is better than life 

itself!”   

Psalm 63:3

HIS
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LETTER FROM THE

All praises to our Sovereign God who has protected us and facilitated our continuity 
through 2022.  This is not a light thing when we consider Ephesians 6:12, “For we wrestle 
not against flesh and blood, but against principalities, against powers, against the rulers 
of the darkness of this world, against spiritual wickedness in high places.” Nevertheless, 
we are beneficiaries and witnesses to this assurance in Matthew 16:18b, “...upon this 
rock I will build my church; and the gates of hell shall not prevail against it.” 

Another year has passed and we thank God that among other things that have passed 
along with it are the COVID-19 restrictions.  Some of these challenged how we balanced 
the biblical mandates of loving each other and the gathering together.  The reality though 
is that in some ways our society has not fully reverted to a pre-COVID era and truth be 
told, that era no longer exists.  We are in post COVID times now.  

As it pertains to Morningstar, the great majority of ministries involving person to person 
contacts are up and running again.  An example of a post COVID change include the 
continuation of online weekly prayer meetings that occurs Wednesday nights concurrent 
with the in-person one held in the library.  Regarding our participation in Communion and 
the collection of the Offering, conversations have commenced with respect to how these 
are currently being carried out.  Stay tuned.

Of important note, Outreach Ministries has stepped up a notch with our bringing on staff 
a Director of Community Engagement, Johnson Hsu, in January 2023.   

I began this communication with praises to God for keeping us since our last AGM.  
I, however, do not want to end with you thinking that we were just merely surviving.  
Consider for 2022:
• 24 Baptisms (with 16 more potentially for March 2023)
• 50 New members (with 25 more potentially in May 2023)

Sincere thanks to our Ministry Team, other church office staff, volunteers and my fellow 
Board members for your service to our Lord and to our church community.  Special 
thanks to Board members Will Jacob, John Carr and Rogelim Nessia whose tenure ends 
on February 28, 2023 and to the new elders, Trevor Russell, Mortimer Rayside, Wisdom 
Marks and Nadeem Khokhar whose tenure begins March 1, 2023.  Thanks for your 
willingness to serve.  

And to our membership and other attendees, thanks for your words of encouragement, 
your kindness, your prayers, your recommendations, your tangible support and your 
questions.   Fellow believers, please now prepare to make yourselves more available 
to come alongside other members in this work for our Lord with the use of your giftings 
in His service when called upon this year.  Matthew 9:37b is true of Morningstar, “The 
harvest is plentiful, but the laborers are few.”  Let us change that this year.

Praise God from Whom all blessings flow,
Dean

DEAN
BARRANT
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“And He is the 

head of the body, 

the church. He 

is the beginning, 

the firstborn from 

the dead, that 

in everything 

he might be 

preeminent.  

1 Timothy 3:15
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MORNINGSTAR 

MINISTRY  
STAFF

ADMINISTRATIVE  
STAFF

Rogelim NessiaWill Jacob (Jr.)
Secretary

Armando 
Guanlao

John Carr

Dean Barrant
Chairman 

Dennis Bennet
Vice Chair

Remember your 

leaders, who spoke 

the word of God to you. 

Consider the outcome 

of their way of life and 

imitate their faith.

Hebrews 13:7 
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STAFFMORNINGSTAR 

Kristine Salazar
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Ministry Intern
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Director of Community 

Engagement

Kimberly Roy
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Ministry Dir. 

Derek Chong
Pastor for Assimilation,  

Disciple and Small 
Groups

David Goudie
Youth and Families Pastor

Michelle Wright
Administrative As-

sistant

Anita Fingal
Administrative  

Assistant

Kendra Parlane
Administrative As-

sistant

Janice Garraway
Communications  

Specialist

Zillah Deerr
Accountant

Kindra Bennett
Children’s  

Ministry Intern

Henry Solmon
Outreach Intern

Dennis Campbell
Executive Pastor 

Justin Huffman
Lead Pastor 

Rob Robinet
Pastor for Worship  

& technical Arts

MINISTRY  
STAFF

ADMINISTRATIVE  
STAFF

Ivan Vasquez 
Custodian
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2022 MEMBERSHIP STATS

9
Death

29
Addittion

37
Deletion

799
Membership

Total

1. MOIRA BRUMWELL   JAN. 30, 2022  80 YEARS OLD

2. ALDONA BIGAUSKAS  JAN. 18, 2022  95 YEARS OLD

3. JANET GROSS   MAY 16, 2022  52 YEARS OLD

4. JULIE CAYLEY   MAY 17, 2022  78 YEARS OLD

5. DWIGHT WESTACOTT  MAY 16, 2022  67 YEARS OLD

6. ENA HAUGHTON   JUNE 22, 2022 79 YEARS OLD

7. LORNA DELA CRUZ   AUGUST 1, 2022  72 YEARS OLD

8. RINA MARKS   AUGUST 5, 2022  68 YEARS OLD

9. JUSTINE LALIC   OCTOBER 1, 2022  20 YEARS OLD    

  

TOTAL MEMBERSHIP AS OF DECEMBER 31

ADDITION

DELETION

MEMBERS DEATH
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2022 BAPTISM
P

salm
 

28:19-20

29
New 

members

BAPTISM

NOV 2022
30.  KRISTINE SALAZAR
31. MYKALE DUARTE
32. TERESA FESTO
33. GABRIEL JUNTILLA
34. LYKA ANDRES
35. SAMUEL MOUAYE    
 KOUADIO
36. DAVID PERSAUD
37. NAFEESA (BONNY)    
 PERSAUD
38. SHELLEY POPART
39. MA ALETH SERVINO
40. JESUS SERVINO
41. DANIEL SERVINO
42. DANE SERVINO
43. DAN SERVINO
44. FAITH SERVINO
45. MALAIKA TAYLOR
46. LONE TUMALA
47. NENITA TUMALA
48. PAUL WISMER
49. PERLITA WISMER
50. MUKUMBI GONDELA

JUNE 2022
1. KUSUMA AKUNURU
2. VINIL JAYASEELAN
3. SANTHANA ANTHONYSAMY
4. SOPHEA ANTHONYSAMY
5. GEORGE DANIEL
6. SHANICE LEWIS
7. RUBY DEEN-JALLOH
8. RANDY GOUDIE
9. SHERRI GOUDIE
10. ALEX HAMILTON
11. JOYCE HUNG-MCKINNON
12. RHEMA JOHNSON
13. TAHMINA KARIMLOU
14. ELAHA KARIMLOU
15. ELINA KARIMLOU
16. MOSTAFA KARIMLOU
17. SUMANTH KUMARAN   
 PREM SUNDAR
18. GREG LEE
19. SHELLEY LYEW
20. ANGIE MATAMOROS
21. RINONA METAJ
22. ROMINA OLIVERIO
23. LLOYD PHILLIPS
24. VASHTI PHILLIPS
25. KATHLEEN PURCELL
26. INGRID RAMLAL
27. SHELDON RAMPAUL
28. NATALIE RAMPAUL
29. JEBIN WILLIAM 
 
 
 
 



ROB ROBINET 
WORSHIP PASTOR

As 2022 comes to an end we pause and reflect on the 
things God has done at Morningstar this past year.  
2022 was our first year without any official closes due 
to COVID and it has been great to see more people 
returning to in-person services each week.  We 
celebrated joyfully with four of our young adult couples 
involved in worship ministries as they got married.  2022 
also had one of the lowest and saddest point for our 
worship ministries family in years as we mourned the 
death of Justine Lalic. While it was hard for so many of us 

to understand why something like this would happen, we also saw an amazing 
outpouring of love to the Lalic family and two very special services of healing 
held on Sunday October 2nd just after Justin’s passing, and her Celebration 
of Life service.  I look forward to seeing what the Lord does through the 
Christlike example that Justine was to her family, friends and co-workers. We 
will definitely miss her on our team but rejoice that she is with her best friend, 
Jesus.

I have taken some time and highlighted a few of the things that stand out 
to me from 2022.  We have been blessed with a wonderful team here at 
Morningstar who were able to roll with the changes to ensure that what we do 
and why we do it remains relevant in an ever-changing world.  We could not 
have accomplished anything without each and every one of you. 

Thanks

Rob Robinet
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WORSHIP

Great is the 
Lord, and 
greatly to  
be praised,  
and His 
greatness is 
unsearchable. 
One generation 
shall commend 
your works  
to another, 
and shall 
declare your 
mighty acts. 

P
SA

L
M

   145: 
3-4

“Leading People of all ages and backgrounds to glorify God and grow in their 
relationship with Jesus Christ through the Word of God, exemplified in our use of 
music, dance, visual and dramatic arts.”   

MINISTRY
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WORSHIP MINISTRIES 2022 
AT A GLANCE…

WORSHIP SERVICES
“Let the Word of Christ dwell in you 
richly, teaching and admonishing one 
another in all wisdom, singing psalms 
and hymns and spiritual song, with 
thankfulness in your hearts to God.
Colossians 3:16

For all of 2022 we were able to run 
both in-person and online services. 
I am so thankful to all of you who 
have been worshiping with us 
online.  It is not the easiest thing to 
engage in worship from your living 
room with all of the distractions at 
home.  Over the past year we have 
had an average of 618 weekly views 
across our 4 different platforms 
(Box-cast, Facebook, Youtube, 
Phone Live streaming).  Our Phone 
live stream service where individuals 
can listen to our Sunday services 
over the phone has an average of  
11 listeners each week.  With more 
people beginning to attend in-person 
services our online viewership is 
down 15%.  It is so encouraging 
seeing so many people out each 
week.

WORSHIP TEAMS
I am very thankful for the many gifted 
instrumentals and vocalist that make 
up our unique and diverse worship 
teams here at Morningstar.  It has 
been a joy to see them grow over 
the last year both spiritually and 
musically.  I am so blessed to play 
and sing along with them each week. 
We have even been able to add some 
of our new members to our teams 
which is very exciting.  I look forward 
to serving with them in the New Year.  
Praise the Lord for such a dedicated 
team!

HEART OF PRAISE,  KIDS IN 
PRAISE & ORCHESTRA 
Unfortunately we were once again 
unable to bring back our large 
ensembles for most of the year.  What 
a joy to put together a small orchestra 
to play on Christmas Day!  I forgot 
how much they add to our services.  
Please be in prayer with me that 2023 
would be the year where we will be 
able to bring back Heart of Praise, 
Kids in Praise & Orchestra.  
 

WORSHIP MINISTRY

BY NUMBERS

11
Phone In 
Listners

618
Average  
views  

per week

43
Countries 
tuned InEphesians    5:19



MINISTRY

SPECIAL EVENTS 
“But  the hour is coming, and is now 
here, when the true worshipers will 
worship the Father in spirit and truth, 
for the Father is seeking such people to 
worship Him.”
John 4:23

In May our first evening of worship 
for the year was led by our South 
Asian Team with an international 
Vibe reminding us that “one day 
every knee will bow and every 
tongue will confess that Jesus 
Christ is Lord!”  In June we had two 
special events - our annual Father’s 
Day Picnic/Outdoor service led by 
Heaven Bound, our Young Adults 
worship team and our Tapscott and 
Friends team wrapped up the month 
with an evening of worship “Walking 
and Waiting for our Saviour”. 

TECH TEAMS
“As each has received a gift, use it to 
serve one another, as good stewards of 
God’s varied Grace” 1 Peter 2:10

I am very thankful to our core of 
tech team members who have been 
faithfully serving throughout all of 
2022.  This group of sound, lighting, 
projection & livestream teams have 
been working tireless supporting our 
Sunday services, special events, 
weddings, funerals and outside 
bookings.  We have also been busy 
training new people to add to our 
exceptional team.  It has been a joy 
to see them working with our new 
systems and taking us to new levels 
of excellence.  Without their hard 
work the message of the Gospel 
that we proclaim each week would 
not have been shared in 43 different 
countries across the world.  Praise 
the Lord!

WORSHIP

MINISTRY
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What a wonderful expression of 
Worship.  We ended the Summer 
with “Songs from the Loft - A Journey 
Through” an evening of worship at 
the Casey’s Farm with a team made 
up of Worship Leaders and friends 
from many different churches in the 
Durham area.  This team also went 
to Westney Heights Baptist church to 
bless them with “A Journey Through” 
and ended up being more blessed 
in the process.  If you missed any of 
these special Events or any of our 
services from 2022 many of them are 
still available to view on our church 
website. 

EVENINGS OF PRAYER
This past year we gathered once 
again in-person as a congregation 
three times to pray intentionally for 
our church.  These three special 
Evenings of Prayer were extremely 
sweet and rewarding as we lifted up 
the church together and prayed for 
the different ministries and events 
which happened at Morningstar. 

NEW YEARS EVE
Once again Heaven Bound got the 
last word/song in 2022 as they led 
us in an evening of worship filled 
with songs, prayer & sharing.  Truly 
the best way to end 2022 as we 
looked back to see the wonders 
God has done in each of our lives. 

SCHOOL OF MUSIC 
The School of Music, while yet 
small, is holding steady and is 
very thankful for the students who 
persevered through online/in-person 
lessons in the early part of 2022. 
Since September there has been a 
complete return to in-person lessons 
and the number of piano students 
has been gradually increasing. We 
presently have a drum teacher and 
a vocal teacher who are patiently 
awaiting students. Please be in 
prayer for the school, for teachers 
in guitar, vocal and piano, and 
for more students. Our goal is to 
raise up musicians with a heart for 
worship. 

Judy Mckinnon 
 

TOTAL ONLINE VIEWS

34,591

VISION SUNDAY 7531

2

3

4

5

617

509

493

485

BAPTISM SUNDAY

EVERY SPIRITUAL BLESSING

THE WEIGHT OF SUFFERING & GLORY 

GOD’s WORD IS UNBREAKABLE

TOP 5 MOST VIEWED SERVICES

AFRICA AUSTRALIA 

NORTH AMERICA SOUTH AMERICA

CARRIBEAN

EUROPE/ASIA

TOP  5  CONTINENTS/REGIONS  
WHO VIEWED OUR BROADCAST

2022
ONLINE VIEWING  
HIGHLIGHTS



18

CHRISTMAS  AT 
MORNINGSTAR
Christmas Eve has always been 
one of my favourite services here at 
Morningstar.  Gathering together on 
the eve of the birth of our Savior is 
truly very special.  I love Christmas 
so much that 12hrs later we returned 
to the church and celebrated 
“Christmas Morning at Morningstar”.  
It was such a wonderful morning full 
of Carols and a special Christmas 
Production “A Christmas Tale” 
presented by an amazing cast.  
We were able to include a small 
orchestra which really added to 
the overall effect!  What a powerful 

presentation of the Gospel.  
Please be praying that the gospel 
presentation heard on Christmas 
Morning will change the hearts of all 
who heard it.  Wouldn’t it be great to 
hear one day that it was the Gospel 
presented on Christmas Day 2022 
that changed the life of someone 
forever!  I was happily taken aback 
by how energetically the entire 
congregation was, singing some 
of our favourite Christmas Carols.   
Praise the Lord! If you missed it you 
can join us in 11 years (2033) when 
Christmas Day is once again set on 
a Sunday or in the meantime you 
can watch Christmas Morning at 
Morningstar on our church website.  

2022

HIGHLIGHTS

WORSHIP MINISTRY

• Sunday Morning  
 services (average of 
 618 weekly views   
 across all 4 platforms)

• Live Streamed in 43  
 different Countries and  
 142 different States/  
 Provinces 

• 4 Special Evenings of  
 Worship

• 3 Evenings of Prayer 

• 1 Christmas Production 
 Christmas at  
 Morningstar 

• New Years Eve with   
 Heaven Bound



WE GIVE HIM

Lord, you are my God;
    I will exalt you and 

praise your name,
for in perfect faithfulness

    you have done wonderful 
things, things 

planned long ago.
Isaiah 25:1



KIMBERLY ROY 
CHILDREN MINISTRY
DIRECTOR

This has been a year of transitions and rebuilding 
for Morningstar Kids, as we welcomed children and 
their families back to Sunday morning classes, ran 
the first in-person camp since 2019, and bid adieu 
to Karmin Marks, our beloved Children’s Ministry 
Director, who poured herself into this role for seven 
years.

Children and their families have been blessed by the 
dedicated service of our team of volunteers, each of whom is uniquely gifted 
to minister to our church’s youngest members. I thank God for each of them 
as they seek to serve our Lord in a variety of ways across all Morningstar 
Kids programs.

Our faithful team, always willing to cheerfully step in and step up, helps 
make children’s ministry possible and so I ask for your prayers for the 
continued success of Morningstar Kids.

Kimberly Roy
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MORNINGSTAR KIDS

MINISTRY

But Jesus called  
the children  
to him and said,  
“Let the little 
children come  
to me, and do not 
hinder them,  
for the kingdom  
of God belongs  
to such as these.  
Truly I tell you, 
anyone who will 
not receive the  
kingdom of  
God like a  
little child  
will never  
enter it.”

L
U

K
E

 
18: 

16-17
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SUNDAY MORNINGS
After gathering as a large group 
in the Fellowship Hall for several 
months, children and teachers alike 
were thrilled to be back in their 
individual classrooms! We continue 
to use The Gospel Project as our 
curriculum, which teaches the same 
lesson in age-appropriate ways to all 
the children from preschool through 
grade six. The learning is extended 
by regular emails to parents, inviting 
them to continue the conversation at 
home with discussion questions and 
family activities.

This fall we were excited to re-open 
the nursery, providing a warm, 
welcoming and environment for 
babies and their parents. Families 
were blessed to once again have 
care provided during the service – 
and nursery volunteers were equally 
enthusiastic to have the opportunity  
to love on these little ones. 
 

VOLUNTEER TRAINING AND 
APPRECIATION
Our Sunday morning programs 
and summer Kids Camp would not 
be possible without the committed 
service of our volunteer team, which 
includes undergoing the necessary 
training to keep children safe and 
provide meaningful, gospel-centered 
activities. This summer, Kids Camp 
staff received specific training to 
help make Monumental an engaging, 
inclusive experience for all campers, 
and all volunteers renewed their Plan 
to Protect certification.
To show our appreciation for the 
tremendous efforts of our dedicated 
team, we hosted a luau-themed 
Volunteer Dinner in June – it was a 
blessed time of giving praise and 
participating in fellowship as we said 
“thank you” to our volunteers!
 

MORNINGSTAR KIDS 

BY NUMBERS

43
Children 
accepted 

christ as their 
saviour

143
Attended 

Momumental 
kids camp in 

August

50
On average 
attend on 
Sunday 

MorningsP
salm

 

136:1



have been able to receive seamless, 
intensive 1:1 support after their 
memorable/positive experience at 
summer camp, or their previous 
church hadn’t re-started Ministry 
after  the COVID pandemic. We have 
also expanded our services into 
supporting young people in Youth 
Ministry.

We are ever thankful for the kind and 
dedicated service of our volunteers 
(who come and go as God leads 
them in their own journeys). We also 
want to thank our teachers, children/
teens, church leadership and the 
congregation for nurturing children 
and teens with all needs (so they 
too can learn the truths of Jesus’ 
gospel). 

Angela Grylls 
 
 
 
 
 

MINISTRY

MORNINGSTAR KIDS

ABILITIES JR 

Abilities Jr. Ministry has had a year 
of Blessings! We have celebrated 
with proud hearts as we witnessed 
“graduates” of our support Ministry 
show continued Spiritual maturity 
(taking the step of Baptism, starting 
to attend Youth programming, joining 
their family in church services each 
Sunday and taking on roles of Service 
within church (mentoring younger 
children, some with similar needs). 
(One of our long-time graduates even 
started College this past year!)

Ongoing transition/fluctuation in 
Ministry numbers (due to changes 
in family circumstances, graduation 
of Ministry participants and COVID 
(but ultimately in God’s Divine plans) 
has allowed us to be flexible and 
accommodate new children; who 

MORNINGSTAR KIDS
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MONUMENTAL KIDS CAMP
Children, parents, and volunteers 
alike were thrilled that we were 
able to host a Monumental camp 
experience in person this summer, 
attended by over 140 children from 
our church and the surrounding 
community, some of whom have 
now made Morningstar their church 
home. Practical, memorable Bible 
truths were written on the hearts of 
all who attended, as we learned that: 

1. God loves us no matter what;
2. God is with you everywhere;
3. God is in charge;
4. God is stronger than  
 anything; and
5. God is surprising.

Through the creative use of drama 
and songs, hands-on activities, 
games, immersive Bible stories, and 
real-life accounts from children, 

campers regularly encouraged 
us with their God sightings and 
connections they made between 
Scripture and their own lives. 

Our staff’s enthusiasm and faithful 
service provided an unforgettable 

Kids Camp by the Numbers

• 143 children attended  
 Monumental in August

• 43 children accepted Christ  
 as their Saviour

• Over 80 volunteers made Kids  
 Camp a “monumental”  
 experience

• 250 people were fed each day  
 by the amazing kitchen staff

• 8 children were  
 welcomed into the Nursery  
 this fall

• 6 children were dedicated 
 this spring as part of our   
 Father’s Day service

• 50 children, on average, 
 attend on Sunday mornings

• 13 volunteers, on average,  
 serve each week

2022

MORNINGSTAR KIDS

experience for children, many of 
whom were first-time campers. We 
are so thankful for the prayers of the 
congregation that kept everyone safe 
and healthy during this week. 

HIGHLIGHTS



DAVID GOUDIE 
FAMILY PASTOR

FUSION YOUTH
Fusion is Morningstar’s youth group for students in 
grades 7-12, meeting every Friday during the school 
year from 7:00-10:00. We play games, lead our 
young people in worship, study the scriptures, and 
go deeper in small groups. We cultivate a community 
that has become home for so many, helping to 
disciple our youth through the difficult teenage years 
in an increasingly challenging world. 

The name Fusion has never seemed more appropriate for our ministry than 
this past year. God has brought together a youth group that has been home 
to a diversity of backgrounds, maturities, personalities, and abilities – with 
all the joys and challenges those differences bring. 
United in that weekly gathering and its foundation on God’s Word, we’ve 
been seeing the steady work of grace both individually and collectively. 
We’ve explored both the person of Christ, and the Bible’s teaching on 
cultural issues. Between game nights, the March break camp, movie night, 
or Christmas dinner, we continue to unit faith and fun together too. 
It is my joy to be the youth pastor – to meet our young people where they 
are, labour to know them, be a part of their growth in faith and maturity, 
and to advocate for them. I call our church to action. Our kids need you. 
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YOUTH & YOUNG ADULTS

MINISTRY

Jesus said to 
them, “I am the 
bread of life; 
whoever comes 
to me shall 
not hunger, 
and whoever 
believes in me 
shall never 
thirst.”

JO
H

N

6:35
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They need your urgent prayers. 
They need your attention, your 
heart, your time. Youth Ministry is 
the trenches of Kingdom work: it 
is evangelism, discipleship, social 
work, community building, sacrificial 
service. It represents God’s heart for 
the next generation, and those often 
overlooked and undervalued. 

I want to thank the amazing 
leadership team, many of whom 
joined this year, for answering that 
call with faithful zeal. This wouldn’t 
be possible without God bringing 
you in to that beautiful Fusion each 
week. We thank the parents, the 
first authorities and disciple-makers, 
for your support and partnership 
in raising up these young people. 
Finally, all those who have been 
praying for this ministry, I can 
never overstate how crucial and 
appreciated that is. May God be 
glorified in all we do.

YOUNG ADULTS
Blessed are the poor in spirit, for  
theirs is the kingdom of heaven… 
Matthew 5:3

The Young Adults of Morningstar 
are an active and vibrant part of the 
Church body, deeply connected 
to each other and comprising a 
significant amount of our volunteers. 
They are frequently the last in the 
building, also returning every Sunday 
evening for their weekly meetings from 
6:00-9:00. They worship together, 
serve together, laugh together, eat 
together, and grow together. 
Like no other, this seems to be a 
demographic ripe for the harvest. 
Many visitors to church, baptisms, 
and new members this year have 
been Young Adults. Outreach efforts 
and partnerships have also largely 
targeted the University Campuses in 
our community.  

YOUTH & YOUNG ADULTS

BY NUMBERS

51
students have 

attended a 
Fusion gathering 
since September

11
new leaders 
were recruited  
in September 

20
Young Adults 
attended the  
MBC Retreat.P

salm
 

121                                                                             



group has been a gift and provision 
for so many after hard years of 
isolation. 
Don’t be intimidated by their size or 
age – I encourage you all to get to 
know these people, with the promise 
that it will be a mutual blessing. Pray 
that God would continue to give 
growth to this group, both in its reach 
and in the depth for those involved, 
then watch with us as we see what 
God will continue to do in and 
through them. 

The group continues to prioritize 
the pillars it began with in 2021: 
Biblical Teaching, Fellowship, 
Service, Worship, Church Unity, and 
Outreach. I am confident inviting 
people into this group, knowing they 
will be welcomed and connected, 
and in time will grow in the graces 
this culture cultivates. Whether doing 
evangelism together, attending a 
retreat, studying the Beatitudes, 
or playing sports, the Young Adult 

MINISTRY

YOUTH & YOUNG ADULTS
Young Adults

• 20 Young Adults attended  
 the MBC Retreat.

• 4 special worship services  
 were led by the Youth and  
 Young Adult band“Heavenbound” 

• 12 Young Adults participated  
 in a  UTSC outreach event.

• 15+ Young adults attending  
 weekly gatherings. 

Fusion Youth

• 11 new leaders were  
 recruited in September. 

• 10 leaders attended a  
 weekend Youth Leaders   
 Conference. 

• 51 students have attended  
 a Fusion gathering since   
 September. 

• 10 students graduated  
 in June.  

YOUTH & YOUNG ADULTS

2022
HIGHLIGHTS
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OF THE LORD

THE

“As each has  

received a gift, 

use it to serve one 

another, as good 

stewards of God’s 

varied grace”

1 Peter 4:10



DEREK CHONG
WORSHIP PASTOR

Dear Morningstar Family,

As I look back with you at the year the Lord has given 
us in 2022, let’s say with our whole hearts, “Great is your 
faithfulness!” (Lam. 3:23).  

I remember coming out of lockdown, and the Lord almost 
immediately raised up a dozen to be baptized!  And, as 
we look at 2022, we saw twenty beloved new disciples 
pledging themselves in baptism to the Lord!  

A tree is known by its fruit, and I am most thankful for such fruit in the midst of 
parching wilderness all around us!  This fruit is good. Of our new mentors raising up 
these new disciples, five of them are newly baptized themselves!  

But why is our tree so fruitful, Morningstar? We are bearing good fruit of new disciples 
family, because you have been faithful!  When I look at our Men’s and Women’s 
Ministries, our Mentoring and Family Ministries, our Connection Groups and their 
leaders, our Library and Abilities Ministries, so many of you are serving our people 
faithfully. And, we have all made our Church Family a faith-rich,  
love- filled, Word-saturated church!  

So, we have and increasingly seek to honor our Lord Jesus’ command to Make 
Disciples of the Nations!  As we bring before him our good fruit, we can’t wait to hear 
His Words to us, “Well done, good and faithful servant(s)!”  

Yours in Christ,
Derek  28

COMMUNITY LIFE

MINISTRY

His master said 
to him, ‘Well 
done, good 
and faithful 
servant. You 
have been 
faithful over a 
little; I will set 
you over much. 
Enter into the 
joy of your 
master.
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OUT OF MANY ONE 
POTLUCK
The “Out Of Many One”, series  
culminated in a church wide  
potluck; and many came!  The 
“Kitchen Crew” emerged from a 
morning of preparation to share 
their humble offerings and were 
quite literally taken aback to  
see so many in attendance.  The 
gymnasium was filled to capacity 
and the food overflowed, offering 
flavours from all corners of the 
world!  

It was a moment; the potluck.  A 
moment to give God praise!  We 
praised Him for His faithfulness to 
Morningstar and it was a tangible 
reminder that  “He is the blessed 
Hope” (Titus 2:13).  

People celebrated in the diversity of 
each other’s cultures coming out of 
the series, "Out Of Many One" with a 
desire to work together as we ought; 
for the glory of our Father God.    
We witnessed a new and exciting 
appreciation, as we were reminded 
that God created us all to be one.  
This was the take away, even if 
there were no leftovers of food that 
day!

Anita Fingal

DISCIPLESHIP 

BY NUMBERS

3
New Mentors 
added to the 

team

30 +
Care Partners 
trained in the 

Summer

20
New  

disciples 
baptizedM

atthew 

28: 
18-25

DISCIPLESHIP MENTORING 
MINISTRY:  BAPTISM, 
MEMBERSHIP, LEADERSHIP 
TRAINING
The Lord blessed us with a fruitful 
year in 2022.  Despite the past 
interruptions, the Lord continued 
to move people to proclaim their 
discipleship in baptism and then join 
our church family as members!  To 
help with this tide of new disciples 
and members, the Lord brought 
Dean Barrant, Romina Oliverio, and 
Paula Hariprasad to our team of 
current mentors of Chris Dwarika, 
Terry Ramkelewan, and Roma 
Bennet to prepare our new disciples 
for baptism!  Not only are these new 
members plugging into ministries 
and Connection Groups, but some 
have joined our “Growth Group” 
to raise up the next generation of 
leaders!  

The excitement doesn’t stop there!  
To top off an amazing year, we had 
a very special day where a couple 
exchanged their vows with their 
classmates after Sunday service!  
Our first wedding following our most 
recent Membership Class!  Very 
special indeed.  God is good, all the 
time.

Terry Ramkelawan, Chris Dwarika, 
and Derek Chong. 
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“ “Testimonies:  
Baptism Class 

Through learning about the origins of creation and God’s 
character in the Baptism class, I also learned about who 
God intended for me to be. I’ve come to understand that 

God views me as a full heir, as His child, and that as such 
I am called to extend that same kind of love to others. 

This has inspired me to demonstrate love  
through service, giving back, and striving daily  

to be more Christlike.  Malaika

RESOURCE CENTRE/  
ADULT LIBRARY 
Since the Resource Centre opened 
in late fall, we are seeing numerous 
people take advantage of the books 
and videos available.
This year, we are working steadily 
to integrate the materials from the 
Children’s Library into the Resource 
Centre/ Adult Library. Hopefully 
this task will be completed in 2023.
Volunteers are helping during the 
week to catalog and organize 
the books attractively. Adult 

books, including Pastor Justin ‘s 
Recommended Reading are being 
made available, as soon as they are 
catalogued.

Thank you to people who have 
donated materials to the library. 
This helps to keep our books and 
resources vibrant and up to date. 
Many thanks to the volunteers who 
assist each Sunday.

Eva McPhail(Mrs.)
Library Co-Ordinator

“ “



“ “Testimony:  
Membership Class:

What I like the most about MCF is how biblically-based the church 
is.  The membership class and MCF’s Statement of Faith is biblically 

based which makes me feel comfortable becoming a member of 
MCF.  MCF is a place where I hope to learn more about the Bible, 

grow in Christian faith, and work together with my brothers and 
sisters in building God’s Kingdom.  Paul.
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Discipleship Mentoring Ministry: 
  

•  Baptism, Membership,  
 Leadership Training 

• 3 New mentors added  
 to mentoring team;

• 30+ Care Partners  
 trained in Summer  

2022

HIGHLIGHTS

COMMUNITY LIFE  
MINISTRY Discipleship Class

• 20 new disciples baptized

• 46 new members equipped

• 4 Next Generation leaders  
 equipped in Growth Group

• 7 New Disciples trained  
 using Discovery Pathway +  
 Videos

“ “One thing I learned and 
experienced about life 
in Christ in the baptism 
class is that I am truly 
a part of a larger body 
or family. Experiencing 
the love of those I’ve 
only begun to know has 
moved me to reciprocate 
that love seven-fold.   
Alex.

Testimonies: 
Baptism Class:



We are so thankful to be part of a 
family of families that recognizes 
that the church should be at the 
forefront of accessibility; ensuring 
that all those who come to our doors 
are able to enter it, and able to 
access the gospel teachings within. 
This is the light that we shine in the 
Scarborough community with our 
Abilities outreach.

The Abilities Outreach at Morningstar 
has resumed some of our services 
after an almost two-year hiatus. We 
were so excited to be able to resume 
support to students from George 
Brown College who are interested in 
learning what it is like to interpret in a 
Christian setting.

We were also very excited to be 
able to provide interpreted services 
on a more regular basis for deaf 
individuals in the Scarborough 
community who were interested 
in attending services but required 
access in their language.

Through communication with 
many Morningstar members who 
expressed a desire to be able 
to interact in a more meaningful 
way with our Deaf friends in 
the Morningstar Community, 
we developed a short 10-week 
curriculum – a crash course – in 
basic signs and Deaf culture that 
we are excited to implement in the 
new year.
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“In the same 
way, let 
your light 
shine before 
others, that 
they may see 
your good 
deeds and 
glorify your 
Father in 
heaven” 

ABILITIES MINISTRY

MINISTRY
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Vera Goudie  
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•  Provided 2 students from   
 George Brown College’s 
  Interpreter Training  
 Program with observation   
 and practical opportunities 
  to  learn about interpreting  
 in a church/religious setting

• Provided Sign Language  
 interpretation for Sunday  
 church services for Deaf  
 congregants

• Provided AODA training  
 at one Toronto church,  
 assisted with the  
 accessibility audit  
 of their premises

•  Responded to several  
 email enquiries about  
 Morningstar’s Ability  
	 Outreach	specifically,	 
 and the broader need for   
 more accessible churches   
 in general

• Developed curriculum  
 for ASL classes to be  
 implemented for  
 Morningstar community  
 in the new year

• Communicated with  
 other ministries regarding   
 individuals enrolled in   
 their programming and how  
 they can best be supported

2022

HIGHLIGHTS

ABILITIES MINISTRY

“As a mother 
comforts her child, 

so I will comfort 
you…”

Isaiah 66:13

Lastly, we were contacted by 
Grace Toronto Church and 
asked to provide a Christ-
centred AODA training to 
their church staff, which was 
completed in October. We were 
thankful to be able to have this 
opportunity to support another 
church in becoming AODA 
compliant. 



CONNECTION GROUPS
We are thankful for the Connection Group 
leaders who have faithfully shepherded 
their groups and people through 2022!  
The theme this year was strengthening 
relationships, so the Lord raised up 
7 seasoned and veteran leaders to 
serve as the Connection Group Cluster 
Coaches:  Dean Barrant, Dennis Bennet, 
Terry Ramkelawan, John Rajas, Manny 
Mendoza, Rogelim Nessia, and Peter 
Mascarenhas.  These coaches met with 
their assigned Connection Group leaders 
for prayer and encouragement at our 
All-Leader Prayer Lunch.  By the Lord’s 
grace, we added seven new Connection 
Groups in 2022.  

Derek Chong.  
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The Lord 
their God 
will save his 
people on 
that day as 
a shepherd 
saves his 
flock.
They will 
sparkle in his 
land like  
jewels in a 
crown.
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CONNECTION GROUPS 2022

HIGHLIGHTS

CONNECTION GROUPS

•  24 Current Connection  
 Groups

•  7  New Groups   
 launched in 2022

• 7 New Cluster Leaders  
 to network with  
 Connection Group   
 Leaders

•  40+ Connection Group  
 Leaders meeting at All  
 Leader Prayer Lunch
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BIBLICAL COUNSELLING
Biblical counselling continues to be 
an important part of the ministry of 
Morningstar to both our members 
and those in our community who 
contact us for help with life issues.

In 2022, Lillian Hutchins (who joined 
the counselling team in 2021) 
and I were responsible for much, 
though not all the counselling. With 
a team of several able Pastors 
and lay counsellors, counselling 
at Morningstar can and does take 
place in both a formal and informal 
manner. It can be one meeting in 
a coffee shop to several weekly 
sessions spanning a few months in 
our counselling room.

I (Dennis) continue to meet with 
individuals, couples, and families 
whenever there is a spiritual life 
need or crisis. In 2022, I meet 
with and counselled 9 couples, 5 
individuals and 2 families. Most of 
these sessions lasted over a period 
of several weeks.
Similarly, Lillian writes, “As we 
close 2022, the Counseling Room 
has seen 24 individuals come 
through our doors, which represents 
approximately 168 counseling 
hours. Seven of these 24 were from 
outside of our Morningstar church 
family. Every counselee understands 
that we use only the Bible as our 
guide for dealing with life’s issues. 
The Gospel is always presented to 
be affirmed or explored. We have 
had 4 professions of faith, and 2 
assurances of salvation. Some of our 

counselees have been referred to us 
by the Pregnancy Care Centre. This 
year we were gifted with a dedicated 
printer for our counseling room, and 
we are now beginning to set up 
another additional counseling room. 
As you can see, the Lord is ‘growing’ 
this ministry and we praise Him for all 
He is doing.”

May God continue to use us as we 
seek to address life issues from the 
Scriptures to give hope and answers 
and encourage spiritual growth and 
maturity.

Dennis Campbell & Lillian Hutchins

BABY BLESSING
After over 25 years of offering 
this service to our community and 
despite the changing cultural 
attitudes toward church, I am 

CONNECTION GROUPS

amazed that the desire from families 
in our community to have their 
children dedicated has not gone 
down. Families continue to call us to 
request this service. 
In 2022 we had 13 families who had 
their children dedicated and blessed, 
all but two families were from our 
community.

This ministry that is largely behind 
the scenes is a vital link and funnel 
to families making their way to our 
church. Each family is interviewed 
so we can get to know them and 
them us, as well as share the biblical 
teaching on family and the need for 
God to be real in their lives. All of this 
ahead of the actual Baby Blessing 
service, which affords us another 
opportunity to deepen the connection 
to our church.

Dennis Campbell
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MENS MINISTRY

MEN’S	MINISTRY
The Men’s Ministry resumed in person meetings and fellowship 
gatherings in 2022, which were well attended and showed that our 
men have been hungry for fellowship and encouragement!  

During the year, we gathered on Saturdays for our weekly Bible 
studies. In the winter of 2022, the Men went through “Spiritual 
Disciplines of the Christian Life” by Donald Whitney and then in the 
fall they went through RC Sproul’s “Assurance of Salvation” series.  
We had several great fellowship events—our Men’s Bowling Event 
drew a good number of men of all ages!  And we barbequed together 
in the summer!  These events really created a sense of unity and 
encouragement among our men. This was especially true for some of 
the newcomers to our church.

Rob Robinson and Derek Chong.

 In the same way, 
you who are 
younger, submit 
yourselves to 
your elders. All 
of you, clothe 
yourselves with 
humility toward 
one another, 
because,
“God opposes 
the proud but 
shows favor to 
the humble.”

Rob Robinson  
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MENS MINISTRY MENS MINISTRY 

BY NUMBERS

50+
Men’s Bible 

study attended 
Bowling Outing

25+
average  

attendance at 
weekly

40+
Men’s  

Summer BBQ 

HIS
May the God of hope 

fill you with all 

joy and peace as you 

trust in him, so that you may 

overflow with hope 

by the power of the 

Holy Spirit.

Romans 15:13
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For God  
does not  

show 
favoritism.

WOMENS MINISTRY
Karena Robinson  

We had our minds informed and hearts challenged as we were fed physically and 
spiritually starting off with dessert night and ending with a potluck dinner as we 
studied the entire book of Genesis this year over Zoom and in-person. It was a 
fruitful time of fellowship, learning who the God of creation and covenant is. We 
were reminded that our God is faithful, providential, high and lifted up; yet He 
lavishes His grace and mercy on us, even as we are so far from deserving. 

WALK AND FELLOWSHIP
The summer noon day walks returned for the second year. Each participant sought 
the fellowship and exercise the scenic Scarborough/Pickering boardwalk through 
the surrounding neighbourhood each week. We had sweet summer noontime walks 
building biblical friendships along the way. 

May the Lord be magnified as we pray that the truths imparted to us never leave 
our hearts and minds. 

Karena Robinson and Derek Chong.

T
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WOMENS MINISTRY WOMENS MINISTRY

BY NUMBERS

7+
average 
walking 
together

30+
attending  

the Genesis 
Study

G
enesis 

1:3 

HIS

“
“

Testimony:  
Womens Ministry  

Lorna’s Testimony: 
The women’s Bible Study on 

Genesis that happened  
last Fall,  

was an amazing experience, I felt it 
was a deep Study , it was extremely 

helpful in my spiritual walk, it was 
very interactive, life changing and 

made me want to go deeper in 
studying the Word of God . I am 

very hopeful we will have more Bible 
studies like this in the future. I would 
like to thank Karena and the team, 

and  
Morningstar for making this 

possible.  
Mrs. Lorna Baptiste, RN



LOOK BACK:    
We are thankful to our Lord for a 
stronger sense of ‘normalcy’ this 
year, although it also came with 
some challenges for some of our 
families. God continued to work 
among our families and provided 
us with multiple opportunities to 
fellowship and praise His name. 

CELEBRATIONS:    
We are excited to have Vinil, Kusuma 
and their family join our families this 
year, along with Faith Clark and her 
family! We are also excited about for 
the baptism of Zubin and Jedediah 
this past year.   

THANKS: 
As our group continues to grow, we 
are thankful for various members 
who have stepped up to volunteer 
their time, homes, and resources. 
A special “shout out” to Renae 
and Mark Weiser who have hosted 
multiple events at their home this 
past year.  

LOOKING FORWARD:   
 Like in the past years, we will 
continue to look for new and more 
creative ways to minister to our 
families and provide opportunities of 
fellowship as well as fun.  
We are grateful to our Lord for 
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‘And let us consider how we may spur one 
another on toward love and good deeds, 

not giving up meeting together, as some are 
in the habit of doing, but encouraging one 

another—and all the more as you see the Day 
approaching’ Hebrews 10:24-25  

FAMILY MINISTRY

MINISTRY
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“ “

Testimony: Family Ministry
The family ministry ministered to Naomi and her son Ayman in their 
time of need.  Here is Naomi’s testimony: Intercession in time of need: - 

Thank you to the entire prayer team of Morningstar Christian fellowship, 
Vidhi (and the Family Ministry), and Wisdom’s families along with Pastors 
Justin and Wilson, and the South-Asian team for being our mouth and 
voice to the Lord when we couldn’t pray for our baby Aymen Israel Samuel.  
Praying for one another is a powerful way for us to bear one another’s 
burdens. Praying is a powerful blessing you have given to us when we  
were lost. Our thoughts were expressed in your words as you  
interceded, and our blessing was provided. Thank you and Glory  
be to God.  In the name of Jesus. Amen. Ayman

“Carry each other’s burdens, and in this way you will fulfill the law of Christ.” 
Galatians 6:2  

standing by all our families this past 
year. Naomi and Robin Samuel’s 
Son Aymen was taken to Sick Kids 
hospital in an unresponsive state, 
but we are so thankful to our Lord for 
answering our prayers and bringing 
him back home safe and sound. 
We are thankful for this network of 
support and prayer partners that 
we have who work with us and our 
families for constant support and 
encouragement.     

FEBRUARY FELLOWSHIP 
AND FUN ON THE ICE:

Ice fishing and skating day – Super 
fun time of ice fishing, skating and 
fellowship on a frozen lake, with a 
cup of hot cocoa! Total people- 60+

MAY FELLOWSHIP BRUNCH 
AND	MOTHERS’	DAY	
CELEBRATION: 

Simple, good old day of food and 
fellowship, while celebrating our 
lovely mothers and mother figures! 
Total people- 40

JULY FELLOWSHIP GET 
TOGETHER AND BBQ:
Fun and fellowship at the Weisers’ 
home. Total people- 35

SEPTEMBER FALL DRIVE 
AND PICNIC: 

Our annual fall drive, this year in 
Kawartha and Algonquin highlands. 
A Jam-packed day of fun with 
visits to a farmers’ market, winery, 
waterfront park, Kawartha dairy  
along with fishing and hiking.   
Total people- 35 
 

OCTOBER FALL FUN DAY, 
AND PUMPKIN CARVING
 Praise Pumpkins, the first of its 
kind Christian pumpkin carving 
competition! The pictures say it all, 
it was a huge hit with people of all 
ages! Total people- 60

DECEMBER DOOR TO DOOR 
CHRISTMAS CAROLING
Now an annual event that all our families 
look forward to! This year we started 
with a fellowship breakfast, and then 
our carol singing group went to various 
neighborhoods, bringing Christmas 
cheer and the Good News of our 
Savior’s birth. Total people-50 +

Vidhi and Thomas Cannivady
 



We are thankful to the Lord for a wonderful group of people who are part of 
our Care Team here at Morningstar. They have contacted and encouraged 
many of our shut-in seniors, those who are ill or grieving the loss of a loved 
one by sending cards, calling them on the phone or visiting them in person. 
Our Care Team has grown from a small group of four to the following 
people: Belvie Payne, Florence Spencer, Haslene Davis, Esther and Terry 
Ramkalewan, Terry and Lloyd Henry, Louise Bardeau, Mike Jung, Rebecca 
Huffman, Jean Russell, Hilda Raymond, Lorna Baptiste, Desiree Husbands, 
Conroy Burnette and Pastor Dennis. Our team made around 78 visits and 
over 150 calls this past year. We have about 30 seniors whom we call or visit 
regularly because they are unable to make it out to the church services – 
and the list keeps growing.

We are also thankful for the many other church members who independently 
call and care for those in our church as the Spirit leads. We believe that this 
ministry is bringing the church members closer together as a family. Our 
motivation is to obey the Lord Jesus who said, “Love one another, as I have 
loved you.”

Respectfully submitted,
Dot Gust and Lillian Hutchins 
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 Carry each 
other’s 
burdens,  
and in this way 
you will 
fulfill the law 
of Christ.

G
A

L
A
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N
S   6:2                                                                     
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BY NUMBERS

78
Visits & 150 
phone calls

130
attended
Christmas
Banquet

35
Meals delivered 

for Martha’s 
KitchenColossians

3: 23                                                                             

LAFFER’S	MINISTRY
Our Ministry team was well prepared 
to start off 2022, as the decision 
was made to continue providing a 
Seniors’ Fellowship ministry for our 
Church community, while keeping in 
mind the need to keep our Seniors 
safe.  We adjusted and adapted 
well each month as we welcomed 
the “regulars” and visitors to the 
monthly gatherings; noticing a 
steady increase in attendance 
month to month!  Continuing with 
our boxed lunch plans, we also 
made sure that our Seniors became 
more actively involved each month.  
There were well thought out craft 
projects, mini race car competitions, 
coconut bowling, and a Hawaiian 
themed day with prizes for the best 
dressed!  We made sure not to 
ignore our physical health and had 
a great day of exercise to help keep 
our bodies fit and flexible.  Along 
with the physicality, the mind must 
be exercised as well, introducing 
our very first Laffer’s Book Club, 
launched in November.  Seven (7) 

ladies came together to discuss their 
first read! What a success! They will 
meet again in February and May of 
2023.

The year ended with a bang – as 
Christmas Banquet tickets were sold 
out in record time.  Close to 130 
Seniors attended the celebration 
luncheon, enjoying the Christmas 
feast. We thank God for His 
provisions and His care that day!
Thank you to the entire Laffer’s team:  
Eutrice Best, Haslene Davis, Rolly 
Duenas, Neville Isaacs, Sandra Kelly 
(Wilson), Ruthanne MacGregor, 
O’Delia Phillips, Trevor Russell, 
and Audrey Sawyer.  We are also 
grateful to those (e.g., Belvie Payne, 
Valma Hutchins, Astor Best) who 
lend a helping hand whenever and 
wherever needed.  Please pray for 
our Ministry team as we ask for God’s 
guidance and direction in the coming 
year.  

O’Delia Phillips and Haslene Davis 



it is a ministry that involves everyone 
within the household in some way

Martha’s Kitchen’s team continues 
to serve as needed. Pray for this 
ministry that before we put any pot 
to boil, turn on the oven, or catch 
the flame under the burner, that  
“whatever you do, work at it with all 
your heart, as working for the Lord, 
not for human masters, since you know 
that you will receive an inheritance”.  
We know that one day we’ll all sit 
together and share a meal, so until 
that time; it is our great pleasure to 
serve you.

Anita Fingal
 
REFUGEE COMITTEE
By the grace of the Lord, 2022 
was a blessed year for the Farah 
family. Through the loving and 
sacrificial giving from Morningstar, 
the Church was able to faithfully 
send the family the required monthly 
financial support that fully met the 
Government of Canada guidelines.
With this financial support, the 
family was able to pay for their 
rent, utilities, and food. In August 

MARTHA’S	KITCHEN
“Martha’s Kitchen” is a humbling 
place to serve. It’s the type of 
ministry which forces us to pause 
and “count our blessings, one by 
one”.  

Christian care is serving others 
through practical help and prayer.  
Martha’s Kitchen is a confidential 
care ministry that exists to support 
those who have a need in the area 
of health, experiencing the loss of a 
loved one, or dealing with a financial 
shortfall.  In the midst of turmoil, 
sadness and loss, a warm and 
healthy meal is a small way  
the Morningstar “Martha’s Kitchen” 
team can express love towards  
their sister or brother in Christ.  

A record of 35 meals were delivered 
in 2022 by Martha’s Kitchen 
volunteers. What a wonderful team to 
sacrificially serve, year after year in 
this way.  

Thank you to all who volunteer their 
time and cooking talents; and their 
families because we recognize that 

PASTORAL CARE

MINISTRY
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2022, we had our nine-month 
Assessment Of Progress by World 
Renew, our government-approved 
Sponsorship Agreement Holder. 
This in-depth evaluation covered 
how each component of the Farah 
family’s settlement plan had been 
implemented. Praise the Lord, our 
evaluation was excellent. We had 
fully met ALL the requirements 
regarding our sponsorship 
responsibilities and for this we are 
thankful to the faithful giving by our 
Morningstar family.

The Committee is pleased to report 
that the family is thriving. All three 
of Mona’s sons were able to find 
part-time jobs related to their career 
interests. Joseph and John are 
working as hairdressers and Fadi 
in a restaurant. Therefore, they will 
be able to support their family once 
the monthly financial support from 
Morningstar ceased on December 
31, 2022. The committee also wishes 
to note that Chadi and Roula have 
been a great source of help and 
encouragement for the family. 
Chadi has asked the Committee 
to thank Morningstar for their 
sponsorship of Mona and her family. 

Comitee Members are:
Abby Oliverio (member until May 
2022), Edna Din, Jennifer Moody 
(member until November 2022, 
Pastor Dennis Campbell (Pastoral 
Oversight) and Zahir Din (Chair)
“For I testify that they gave as much 
as they were able, and even beyond 
their ability. Entirely on their own, they 
urgently pleaded with us for the privilege 
of sharing in this service to the Lord’s 
people.” 2 Corinthians 8:3 (NIV)

In His Service,
Zahir Din 

MEMBERSHIP CARE 
Someone asked me the other day, 
‘How does a church this large 
keep track of all it’s members and 
adherents?’   
That is a good question!

The Membership Care team works 
behind the scenes at the grass roots 
with our church directory to reach 
out, (mostly by phone,) to all our 
church families each year.  
We confirm regular attendance, 
encourage membership when 
appropriate, and for those who 
need refer a Connection Group 
to them.   These calls allow us to 
discover family member needs, pass 
on visitation requests and pray with 
them as need be.  Administratively, 
we pass along information to update 
the church directory or similar. 

Our team of 11 members share 
these discoveries with the church 
office, who in turn follow up with the 
appropriate Pastor if necessary.  

We strive to help those who might 
otherwise go unnoticed if not well 
connected, or those who feel lost 
become part of the church family 
again.  Our team members are: 
Andrea Munroe, Astor Best, Anita 
Fingal, Belvie Payne, Cecily Isaacs, 
Debra Slater, Floy Crossdale, Hurla 
Garrett, Pearl Wismer, Paul Hirons 
and Pastor Dennis.  

Our team has a broad knowledge 
of the people and families in our 
church.  I’d like to thank each of them 
for their diligent work this past year. 
(They each have about 50 families 
to communicate with.) We also covet 
your prays for all our endeavours.  

Paul Hirons
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Attenders
Our total Annual 

attendance in person

Connection Groups 
Located across  

the GTA
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Webster’s dictionary describes the word “nations” as 
“a large body of people united by common descent, 
history, culture, or language, inhabiting a particular 
country or territory”. Morningstar’s tagline “where the 
nations meet” takes it further still. The commonality we 
share as a Morningstar family is our unity in Christ, all 
looking up and forward to that great day. When Christ 
will return for His church. 

After this I looked, 

and behold, a great 

multitude that no one 

could number, from 

every nation, from all 

tribes and peoples and 

languages.

20,843

21

Revelation

7:9                                                                             
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43

70

Psalm
  96: 3                                                                            



It can be observed and keenly felt that more than ever before 
people need to be given the hope of Christ. So many are searching, 
searching for anything at all, in an attempt to fulfill that which is 
missing inside.  We who know Christ understand that it is a fruitless 
search – the worldly pursuits.  

Scarborough as a City within one of the world’s most diverse 
populations – Toronto, Canada; gaining in popularity and scope, but 
are we gaining in the area of reaching out to those who are lost?  

So how has Morningstar been doing in this area?   Back to basics. 
By building relationships with individuals in the local colleges and 
universities.  By opening up our building to come and have a warm 
and homecooked meal.  By inviting youths by the droves to Saturday 
evening “hang outs” and Sunday morning services.  By studying 
God’s word from the beginning, carefully and prayerfully reading 
and discussing the “in the beginnings” of Genesis.  Through meals 
being delivered to families in need and someone seeing on display 
servitude at a grass roots level. 

We know however that the most effective “outreach” will not be in 
form of a program, but through a yearning to be more like Jesus; and 
then sharing this “good news” with those within our own personal 
spheres of influence.  This is a personal ministry for all of us.  

Let us as a body of Christ be deliberate in 2023 through our speech, 
actions and deeds to draw others to Christ. We are assured that He 
will do the rest.
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Then Jesus came to 
them and said, “All 
authority in heaven 
and on earth has 
been given to me. 
19 Therefore go 
and make disciples 
of all nations, 
baptizing them in 
the name of the 
Father and of the 
Son and of the 
Holy Spirit, and 
teaching them to 
obey everything I 
have commanded 
you. And surely 
I am with you 
always, to the very 
end of the age.”

M
A

T
T

H
E

W
   28:

18-20
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CARE CLOSET
All walks of life come to receive 
from our Care Closet.  We consider 
each bag and do our best to cater 
based on their family dynamics.  
Are there children? Babies? How 
many adults within the home? The 
bags are filled with what we hope 
will produce several meals and 
satisfy somewhat…..knowing that 
the perishable food can only provide 
some nutrients; but it will cease some 
of the hunger.   Some ask for the Daily 
Bread booklets, some ask for prayer, 
some stay and chat a little, some 
shyly take the food and quickly exit.

We have seen an increase in 
your generosity in 2022, meeting 
the demands of our community 
needs.  Thank you for the gift cards 
and the groceries.  We want to 
acknowledge that the price of food, 
even non-perishables have increased 
significantly and so we are especially 
grateful and appreciative to you for 
keeping Morningstar’s Care Closet’s 
pantry shelves stocked as you have.
We’d like to acknowledge as well 
the Connection Group who annually 
donates a large volume of groceries, 
and of course our volunteer Wayne 
Simmons who lovingly unpacks the 
donations and helps keep the care 
closet organized on a weekly basis.

PRAYER MINISTRY
We know that prayer is the ultimate 
link with God; a comfort to those who 
believe, and the source of peace – the 
Christ to whom we pray.  Our prayer 
team quietly awaits prayer requests 
and then get to the business of taking 
them before the Lord.  

Each member of this small team at 
various times will send through a note 

of encouragement; when it should 
be us encouraging them.  We know 
to carry one another’s burdens is a 
command; but not always easy to do. 

As a church family are appreciative  
to this team for their faithfulness and 
active “duty” behind the scenes; 
away from the spotlight.  How grateful 
we are for their love of Christ and 
therefore love of humanity, that they 
would commit to this ministry of prayer 
year after year. If you would like to join 
the Prayer Team, we welcome you.

OPERATION CHRISTMAS 
CHILD
Even now as you’re reading this 
report, chances are there’ll be a 
child somewhere, perhaps in the 
farthest corners of the globe, opening 
a shoebox.  It’s March now, the 
package has been in transit since 
mid-December and it’s finally reached 
it’s destination.   There’s an assembly 
organized, the children have been 
told that something special is about 
to happen.  They line up, then sit, and 
then are presented with their gift.  The 
shoebox. 

Morningstar has participated in 
Operation Christmas Child, acting 
as a Scarborough “hub” for many 
years.  Our prayer continues to be 
that more would support this ministry.  
There are many ways in which you 
can contribute, or by perhaps joining 
the team along with Ryan Hariprasad 
and Tom Morrisey as they coordinate.  
After all, “many hands make light 
work”.
The child holds the box in their arms 
for a moment.  They Imagine what 
could be inside. The contents are 

OUTREACH MINISTRY

BY NUMBERS

816
Average  
views  

per week

655
new clients 
were served 
from the PCC 
office at the 

Scaroborough 
office

simple – some crayons and paper, 
a small ball or doll, some practical 
objects like soap, a washcloth and 
toothpaste.  The joy the contents 
provide is anything but simple.  

Consider being part of the 
Morningstar community reinvigorating 
this precious ministry in 2023.  We 
can make a difference. Proverbs 
19:17 says, “Those who are gracious to 
the poor lend to the Lord, and the Lord 
will fully repay them”.

By His Grace, Anita Fingal



community.  Several PCC families 
have made MCF their church home 
through these connections. MCF 
generously provided help towards 
the Christmas party and gifts for 
families again this year.   The 
volunteer team members include 
those who help on an occasional 
basis as well those who set aside 
time each month to serve in the 
office, help facilitate parenting 
preparation sessions ( Lifeboat 
Coarse), home visits and curbside 
delivery of material support.

Paulette Smalling continues 
to coordinate activities at the 
Scarborough office along with her 
colleague Rosamine Hashemi .  

The Lord blessed those serving from 
the Scarborough office of Pregnancy 
Care Centre Toronto with more 
opportunities to help families in need 
than ever before in 2022.    Thank 
you to all who prayed, donated 
money, collected baby items, and 
served on the MCF Volunteer Team 
this past year.  Be encouraged!  
Your support made a big different in 
the lives of many families.

The Morningstar Volunteer Team 
under the leadership of Alison Baeta 
and Roma Bennet was active at 
fundraising events, client gatherings  
and with helping moms, dads and 
their families be welcomed to the 
Morningstar Christian Fellowship 

MINISTRY

OUTREACH

PCC MINISTRY
Pregnancy Care Centre Toronto

“For the  
perfecting of the 

saints, for the work 
of the ministry, for 
the edifying of the 

body of Christ.”
  Ephesians 4:12  
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PCC MINISTRY
•  655 new clients who were   
 served from the PCC’s 
		 office	at	Morningstar	 
 Christian Fellowship in   
 2022.  

• 1390 appointment hours 
  were provided to moms,   
 dads and their children

• 97 - known births from   
 the moms who were served  
 in Scarborough

• 222- pregnancy tests given  
 with discussion about   
 sexual integrity

• 196 men came with their  
 partners to consider  
 pregnancy options

• 13 individuals received  
 support after being  
 troubled by a past abortion  

• 384 individuals were  
 open to receiving prayer  
 and hearing about God

• 150 families received a  
 Christmas gift bag, Bible  
 and food support

What was the impact of your help?  Here are some statistics:

They care for those with unexpected 
pregnancies 5 days a week.   On 
Monday and Wednesday nights 
they stay open until 9 pm in order to 
serve those who work or go to school 
during the day.

For more information about how 
you can get involved with the MCF 
Volunteer Team contact 

Roma Bennett;  pcc.
morningstarteam@gmail.com

For more information about 
Pregnancy Care Centre 
Toronto:  paulette.smalling@
pregnancycarecentre.org or visit 
pccfriends.ca

2022

HIGHLIGHTS

PCC MINISTRY



with tea and coffee after the first and 
second service. It was a nice way 
for friends and family who attended 
the service to remember (and hear 
about) the crucifixion of Jesus Christ. 
Many people commented on their 
surprise at the welcomed treat that 
was provided.

Later in the year, the team prepared 
a Thanksgiving Lunch for the Malvern 
community and the local college and 
university students in the area. Our 
vision was to invite students who may 
not have been able to go home for 
Thanksgiving, or this was their first 
introduction to a Thanksgiving meal 
in Canada. Unfortunately, the turnout 
was very low; however, our plan was 
not the same as God’s. He opened 
another door which allowed us to give 
the extra meals to a community shelter 
and a family that was in need due to 
circumstances beyond their control. 
Praise the Lord! We were very thankful 
for volunteers (from MCF members 

Our Vision is to love and serve God 
and to reach our neighbors in the 
Malvern and surrounding area. By 
doing so, we would provide food 
and offer spiritual support with 
compassion and genuine care for 
them.

In 2022, the MCF Food Ministry 
Team kept busy with several events 
throughout the year. We kicked it 
off with a Family focused event for 
Family Day. This included family 
members choosing a movie to 
watch at home and the MCF Food 
Ministry team providing the snacks. 
The purpose of the event was for 
families to spend time together on 
this February holiday. Many families 
participated in this fun event. It was 
wonderful to see young smiling faces 
coming to receive their family treat 
bags.
Our next event focused on Easter in 
April. The team provided Hot Cross 
buns, West Indian bun and cheese, 
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FOOD

MINISTRY

 Then Jesus  
declared, “I am the  

bread of life. Whoever 
comes to me will never 

go hungry, and whoever 
believes in me will  
never be thirsty.  

John 6:35
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and others) who gave of their time 
Saturday morning and afternoon and 
enthusiastically participated.

Our last event was the 2nd Annual 
Family Christmas Tree Event. Many 
sponsors from the MCF family came 
forward to participate and support 
recipient families. We even had a 
family who do not attend Morningstar 
but heard about the event and wanted 
to take part. This year by God’s grace, 
we were able to support over 40 
families (120+ people). We mobilized 
ourselves and delivered the gifts or 
had some of the recipients pick them 
up from the church. This all took place 
a week before Christmas.

We must share with you that the 
MCF Food Ministry team was in the 
unique position of hearing some of 
the recipients’ stories. We were able 

FOOD MINISTRY

BY NUMBERS

40
Families 

supported

to connect with and provide gifts 
for families within the church and 
in the community who have no 
extended families, single parent 
families, seasoned people who 
live on their own, families who are 
living in shelters, persons living on 
the streets, and families with many 
health challenges who would not 
have anything for Christmas. We 
were blessed to see reactions of 
the recipients crying with gratitude 
at how God had provided for 
them. We were able to tell many 
people that Jesus hears their 
cries, He knows their needs and 
He is Jehovah Jireh our Provider. 
We also have to tell the stories 
of sponsor families who enjoyed 
being the hands and feet of 
Jesus, who shared this activity of 
purchasing gifts for others in need 
and how it brought back memories 

of family doing things together 
when their children were younger. 
You see this act of God was not 
only designed to support recipient 
families but also to bring sponsor 
families closer together enjoying 
each other’s company. Our God is 
awesome! He sees each and every 
one of us and He recognizes what 
we need and when we need it.

Thank you again to everyone who 
participated, volunteered and prayed 
for each event that took place in 
2022. May God be glorified.

MCF Food Ministry.
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THE LIVING WORD The ministry of the Living Word has now become a regular weekly feature 
for Morningstar through our online ministry. I have been blessed to produce 
these weekly video messages that has as its goal to aid God’s people to 
better understand his word and share it with others. Here is a comment that I 
received from one of our viewer: 
“I wanted to reach out and thank you for the Living Word Sermon videos. 
They are extraordinary! Sister Florence has been sending links to your recent 
uploads, but I took the liberty in going back to past uploads, attempting to 
bring myself up to speed. I’m glad I did. You’ve helped provide some clarity 
and insight to the Lord’s word while diving into books such as Revelations, 
which can be easily misinterpreted by novice readers (such as myself).”

All messages are produced weekly and posted on Facebook, YouTube and 
our Website. In 2022 we studied the New Testament Book of James, a short 
series in the Psalms, and the Old Testament book of Joshua. 

In 2022 The Living Word averaged weekly views of about 96: approximately 16 
views on our Facebook page; 70 views on our YouTube channel and 10 views 
on our website, with a viewership that spans several provinces and countries 
including the United States, the Caribbean, and the United Kingdom. 41% of 
our audience watch the scheduled broadcast on Saturday, while 59% watch it 
at another time. 

My sincere thanks to Owen and Janice, who gave so much of their time and 
expertise to produce and edit the videos and to the members of Morningstar 
who graciously allowed me to serve in this way.

Dennis Campbell

For the word  
of God is alive and  

active. Sharper than  
any double-edged sword, it 
penetrates even to dividing  
soul and spirit, joints and 

marrow; it judges the  
thoughts and attitudes  

of the heart.
Hebrews 4:12

MINISTRY

DENNIS CAMPBELL

@THELIVINGWORD.DENNIS
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MISSIONARIES
• Mary-Lue Mahaffey (Daystar Native Worker)
• Bechara and Roula Karkafi (FEB International Lebanon)
• Hannibal Muhtar (FEB LeadersFormation)
• Ricardo & Ingrid Castro (FEB International Spain)
• McTaire & Suzanne Wall (FEB International France)
• Dave & Colleen Hunt (Partners International)
• David Umune (Partners International Nigeria )
• Dan Sherman (Power to Change)
• Kevin & Christine Cuz (Athletes in Action)
• Peter & Rhonda Koropatwa (SIM)
• David Prince ( TEAM)
• Julius Naredo (Urban Promise)
• Calvin Russell (Youth Unlimited)
• Charlene Boreland (Youth Unlimited)
• Chadi Farah (Arabic ministries)

TRAINING INSTITUTIONS:
• Heritage Bible College & Seminary  
 (Canada)
• Bethlehem Bible College (Bethlehem)

CHURCH PLANTING – 
Quebec, 3 church plants

GLOBAL LEADERSHIP TRAINING PARTNERSHIP 
(LEADERSFORMATION) 
• India • Philippines 
• Nigeria • Dominica

OTHERS 
• Adam House (refugee ministry)
• Open Doors (ministry to the  
 persecuted church)

Canada

Lebanon

Japan

Spain

France

Canada
Lebanon
Spain
France
Japan

MORNINGSTAR SUPPORTED
MISSIONARIES IN 2022
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And this 
gospel of the 
kingdom will be 
preached in the 
whole world as 
a testimony to 
all nations, and 
then the end 
will come.

M
A

T
T

H
E

W
  24:14                                                                             

Sometime in early November 2021, 
Morningstar Christian Fellowship 
reconvened the Global Missions Team 
(GMT) under the guidance of Pastor 
Dennis Campbell.  The Team is com-
posed of the following members:

Minda Nessia      – Moderator, 
Ofelia Guanlao    – Secretary
Antoinette Payne – Member
Joe Matthew        – Member  
Alycia Gluch        – Member

In year 2022, the Lord has impressed 
in our hearts to become more inten-
tional and involved in the life and min-
istry of our Missionaries. Our desire 
was to better support them by raising 
the church’s awareness, excitement 
and involvement in missions. These, 
we accomplished by:

1.	Updating	our	mission’s	database. 
After a period of silence due to the 
lockdown, a few of our Missionaries 
underwent life changes. Some have 
retired while others have moved on; 
hence, we saw the need to update 
their status and contact details  
to stay connected.

2. Presenting a 3-minute video report. 
We shared a total of ten video  
reports from our missionaries with the  
congregation during our morning  
worship services.  This gave the 
church a glimpse of who our  
Missionaries are and the work that 
they do.   

3.Encouraging	regular	missions’	
reports. We followed-up with our 
Missionaries to regularly submit their 
updates so that we are informed of 
their work and can pray for them.  
Some GMT members also had the 
opportunity to personally fellowship 
with Alex Farley (Quebec worker) and 
McTair Wall (missionary to France), 
and we were able to personally meet 
Julius Naredo (Urban Promise) when 
he gave an in-person report to the 
church. What a blessing to hear their 
God stories in the mission field! 
Updating of the mission’s map at the 
church foyer is also ongoing as plans 
for a Missions Conference in 2023 is 
in progress. The last Missions confer-
ence at Morningstar was held in 2008 
so we plan with mixed emotions.  For 
a team of five members, we are anx-
ious, and yet, also confident recogniz-

Morningstar has a long and enduring history with Global Missions, and we 
shouldn’t be surprised. From the very beginning of our church, we have taken 
seriously Jesus’ words to go into all the world and make disciples (Matthew 
28:19). We have sought to obey this command by sending and supporting 
both financially and with prayer missionaries and mission organizations both 
abroad and here at home. The report that follows is a reflection of our hearts 
reflecting the heart of Jesus for the lost in our world. 
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ing that this is a God-sized task that 
only our BIG GOD can do! So, we are 
excited to see how the Lord will work 
and make this conference happen,  
as we entrust everything to Him.  
God has also graciously opened the 
doors for us to partner with:  

1.Power to Change. We sent  
Alicia Gluch on a short-term summer 
missions’ trip from May 1 to June 8 to 
Dessert Rain (country undisclosed). 
What a joy to see one of our young 
adults step out and answer God’s call 
to share the love of Jesus to a country 
that is closed to the gospel.  

2.Fellowship of Evangelical Baptist 
Churches in Canada. We helped in the 
transition of Jean-Elie and Eun-Hae 
Moulin from Martinique to Quebec to 
serve in the Pastoring and  
Discipleship Training Ministries. 

3.Association	d’Eglises	Baptistes	
Evangéliques au Québec. We  
supported two students, Luke Bates 
and Marylou Maisonneuve, to enroll  
at the l’Académie Mouvement  
Jeunesse (AMJ). After their training, 
our prayer is for Luke and Marylou to 
become part of the new generation of 
disciple-makers and leaders in their 
churches.
 
We are amazed at what God has 
accomplished in 2022 through the 
humble and faithful service of His 
children. We have seen Him do more 
than we asked for or imagined and 
we are excited for what He will do in 
2023. What a great way to end our 
last GMT meeting for 2022 with this 
song resonating from our hearts: 
“Praise the Lord, Praise the Lord,  
let the earth hear His voice
Praise the Lord, Praise the Lord,  
let the people rejoice
Oh come to the Father,  
through Jesus His Son
And give Him the glory,  
great things He has done”.

What an awesome God we serve!

Minda Nessia
On behalf of the Global  
Missions Team 
 

LEADERS FORMATION  
DOMINICA REPORT
Our training in 2022 began in 
March as it had for the prior two 
years, hybrid online via Zoom and 
in-person at Deliverance Baptist 
Church. We had hoped that we 
would be able to travel by this 
time, however the restrictions were 
still in place making it impossible. 
Nonetheless, we had a great time of 
studying Series 2 Book 4: Building 
for Future Generations. Over the five 
days of training the cohort averaged 
17-20 people, which is what we 
normally expect at each of the three 
training periods per year.

Finally, after more than two years 
of not being able to conduct the 
training in person (due to the 
pandemic), we were able to visit 
the island of Dominica in July for 
our second round of training. It’s 
an understatement to say we were 
extremely excited to be back in 
person with our Dominican brothers 
and sisters. The warm embraces and 
smiles reminded us how much we 
missed being there, and how close 
we had grown to each other. 
 
We began to study Series 3 Book 1: 
Handling the Word with Confidence. 
Leo Pauls from Fort Saskatchewan 
Baptist and I were the Canadian 
Facilitators, and we were joined by 
eight Dominican Pastors or church 
leaders to assist with the teaching 
at each session. Since we were 
in the fourth year of the five-year 
project, more than seventy percent 
of the training is now being done 
by the Dominican Pastors and the 
church leaders. This will continue to 
increase and is in keeping with one 
of the goals of Leaders Formation 
(LF), which is to train up leaders 
over the five years and enable them 
to catch the vision to take what they 
are learning and begin to teach it 

GLOBAL MINISTRY

BY NUMBERS

17+
Average Attender
for 5 day training

to others, individually in a mentoring 
relationship and as part of small 
discipleship groups.

We concluded the fourth year of 
training in November. Dave Hunt from 
Hope Bible Church and I were the 
Canadian Facilitators. Dave and I had 
started the training four years ago and 
it was special to team with him again. 
Apart from the regular training over 
the five days we felt a strong sense 
of being led by the Spirit to change 
the final session and simply spend 
time praying and talking about how 
the Spirit might be leading this group 
of Pastors and church leaders. Out of 
this the Cohort made a commitment by 
setting a date to meet regularly outside 
of the training schedule to continue to 
pray, listen and talk about how they 
can better work together to support the 
work of evangelism and discipleship in 
Dominica. 

Thank you to our Morningstar family for 
your prayers and financial support of 
this project

Dennis Campbell



DENNIS  
CAMPBELL  
Executive Pastor

ADMINNISTRATIVE
After three years of on and off Covid restrictions and 
lockdowns, 2022 was something of a breath of fresh 
air. Although we were cautious and vigilant to keep 
ourselves and others safe, church finally began to 
feel normal again. More and more people began to 
return on a regular basis and seats were placed back 
together in the auditorium, as was fellowshipping 
after the service.

The Admin Team in our office were ready for the return to normal. For 
Sunday mornings, the “Common Grounds” crews were recruited and 
began the work of preparing the foyer area for the before and after service 
gatherings. Tea, coffee, and light refreshments were available again. There 
was also a noticeable uptick in the use of the building which requires some 
coordination from our office staff. But not just our Admin team and volunteers 
but also our Ushers, Property and Custodial staff and volunteers. Everyone 
put their hands together to ensure that our Sunday morning and weekday 
events were running smoothly. Our Custodians also returned to normal hours 
by the summer in order to keep our facilities clean and ready to be used 
each week.

We are grateful for the help of Farrah Lubrun, an accounting student who 
started coming into the office to assist our Accountant once a week. This has 
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Greet one 
another with a 
kiss of love.
Peace to all of 
you who are in 
Christ.
1 peter 5:14
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been a great help to Zillah.
Morningstar has a team of ladies in 
our office who do what they do not 
just because it’s their job, but more 
importantly it’s their ministry to God’s 
people at Morningstar and those in 
our community. 

Thank you so much ladies for  
your ministry among us.

I would like to also say a huge thank 
you to our Envelope Steward Ryan 
Hariprasad. The work he puts in 
to ensure those who faithfully give 
are properly recorded and receive 
the correct tax receipts is greatly 
appreciated.

Thank you each for your part  
in representing and serving  
Morningstar well.

Dennis Campbell

PROPERTY
It took a dedicated team of people 
to keep our facilities clean and in 
good working order in 2022. With the 
departure of Paul Hamilton our Part 
Time Custodian, we were grateful for 
the services of Richard Chee-A-Tow 
who worked alongside our full-time 
custodian Ivan to ensure that the 
building was kept clean and in order. 
They were also tasked with helping 
to set up rooms when there was an 
event happening.
Behind the scenes sharing in the 
work of the upkeep of our facilities are 
the faithful members of our Property 
Committee: Kevin Wright - Chair, Ron 
Gust, Steve Jerome, Alf Hutchins, 
Astor Best, and Paul Hirons along 
with the assistance of Neville Isaac 
on certain projects. We are blessed to 
have these men serve Morningstar in 
this way. Thanks so much gentlemen, 
for your expertise and sacrificial 
service.

2022
ADMIN & 

FIRST IMPRESSIONS

   
 Here are some of the  

projects the Property  
Committee oversaw in 2022:

• Additional Roof Repairs.
 Installation of a Canopy  
	 at	the	office	entrance.

• Repair to the walkway  
 at the main entrance to  
 our parking lot.

• Crack Repairs to the  
 Parking Lot

• Installation of barrier  
 gates in the upper  
 parking lot.

• Regular ongoing  
 maintenance throughout  
 the building.

• The annual Spring  
 Clean-up in April, to  
 ensure the grounds and  
 interior of our building  
 are refreshed after the  
 winter months.

HIGHLIGHTS
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2022 2021 2020** 2019** 2018** 2017** 2016** 2015** 2014** 2013** 2012**

  January $ 18,144 22,959 21,549 $ 17,619 $ 23,483 $ 23,004 $ 22,932 $ 22,449 $ 22,449 $ 22,089 $ 25,040 $

  February 22,172 24,425 25,769 25,255 25,678 25,427 23,037 23,143 22,424 23,110 26,409

  March 22,785 20,402 18,645 25,616 27,722 24,223 24,478 22,923 25,014 30,045 28,858

  April 25,851 25,660 27,215 28,348 25,545 27,375 28,181 32,277 26,913 26,474 28,391

  May 22,708 19,769 24,261 25,859 28,272 26,455 24,606 30,431 27,142 23,518 25,670

  June 21,872 28,268 24,271 29,963 24,277 27,256 30,187 23,342 25,660 24,033 26,830

  July 24,282 25,467 22,104 25,946 23,911 27,963 28,942 30,547 24,980 29,040 25,820

  August 20,783 19,958 25,053 31,418 25,415 25,802 27,831 26,396 21,367 22,990 29,913

  September 22,642 25,728 26,174 26,131 23,532 24,193 24,436 23,309 22,216 29,087 25,436

  October 23,025 24,209 25,488 27,097 25,361 26,128 26,182 25,190 23,172 26,100 27,291

  November 22,054 27,246 25,392 24,126 27,013 26,766 34,546 25,365 25,674 24,389 25,747

  December 39,716 42,396 43,334 41,022 33,771 35,874 38,092 39,796 36,005 30,592 34,900

Weekly average 23,499 25,541 25,584 27,622 26,205 26,834 27,624 27,090 24,987 26,074 27,562

Change from prior year -7.99% -0.17% -7.38% 5.40% -2.34% -2.86% 1.97% 8.41% -4.17% -5.40% 4.05%

** Tapscott location included beginning 2012
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Payment	Type Amount % Count
Cash 150,797.65 12% 1,559
Cheque 283,655.00 23% 896
Moneris 70,078.00 6% 210
e-Transfer 254,694.44 20% 1,216
PushPay 500,782.29 40% 3,651

1,260,007.38 7,532
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OFFERING STATS
Morningstar Christian Fellowship
Contribution Range Report
For Period: 01/01/2022 to 12/31/2022

Low High

0.01                    <120 109                           18.41 6,179.83                    56.70                                
120.01                <300 58                             9.80 12,182.67                  210.05                              
300.01                <1,200 172                           29.05 126,737.54                736.85                              

1,200.01             <2,400 93                             15.71 162,870.63                1,751.30                           
2,400.01             <3,600 56                             9.46 164,120.95                2,930.73                           
3,600.01             <4,800 23                             3.89 95,354.30                  4,145.84                           
4,800.01             <6,000 24                             4.05 127,442.46                5,310.10                           
6,000.01             <7,200 20                             3.38 131,974.00                6,598.70                           
7,200.01             <8,400 10                             1.69 76,194.00                  7,619.40                           
8,400.01             <9,600 7                               1.18 63,920.00                  9,131.43                           
9,600.01             <12,000 10                             1.69 107,265.00                10,726.50                         

12,000.01           and greater 10                             1.69 185,766.00                18,576.60                         

Total 592 1,260,007.38             2,128.39                           

Contribution Range

# of Contributors 
Total YTD % of Contributors Total Given Per 

Range
Average per Contributor 

(YTD)

<120	

<300	

<1,200	

<2,400	

<3,600	

<4,800	

<6,000	

<7,200	

<8,400	

<9,600	

<12,000	

and	greater	

<120	
18%	

<300	
10%	

<1,200	
29%	

<2,400	
16%	

<3,600	
9%	

<4,800	
4%	

<6,000	
4%	

<7,200	
3%	

<8,400	
2%	

<9,600	
1%	

<12,000	
2%	

and	greater	
2%	

<120	 <300	 <1,200	 <2,400	 <3,600	 <4,800	 <6,000	 <7,200	 <8,400	 <9,600	 <12,000	 and	greater	

<120	
18%	

<300	
10%	

<1,200	
29%	

<2,400	
16%	

<3,600	
9%	

<4,800	
4%	

<6,000	
4%	

<7,200	
3%	

<8,400	
2%	

<9,600	
1%	

<12,000	
2%	

and	greater	
2%	

<120	 <300	 <1,200	 <2,400	 <3,600	 <4,800	 <6,000	 <7,200	 <8,400	 <9,600	 <12,000	 and	greater	
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Directors of
Morningstar Christian Fellowship
SCARBOROUGH
Ontario

Qualified Opinion
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Morningstar Christian Fellowship which comprise the 
statement of financial position as at December 31, 2022 and the statement of operations - unrestricted fund, 
statement of changes in fund balances and statement of cash flows for the year then ended and notes to the 
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, except for the effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph, the 
accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the entity as at 
December 31, 2022 and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance 
with Canadian accounting standards for not-for-profit organizations.

Basis for Qualified Opinion
In common with many not-for-profit organizations, the entity derives revenue from contributions, the 
completeness of which is not susceptible to satisfactory audit verification. Accordingly, verification of these 
revenues was limited to the amounts recorded in the records of the entity. Therefore, we were not able to 
determine whether any adjustments might be necessary to contributions revenue, excess of revenues over 
expenses, and cash flows from operations for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, current assets as 
at December 31, 2022 and 2021, and net assets as at January 1 and December 31 for both the 2022 and 2021 
years.

Our audit opinion on the financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2021 was modified accordingly 
because of the possible effects of this limitation in scope.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Our responsibilities 
under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial 
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the entity in accordance with the ethical requirements 
that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Canada, and we have fulfilled our other responsibilities 
in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance 
with Canadian accounting standards for not-for-profit organizations and for such internal control as management 
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the entity's ability to continue as a 
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of 
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the entity or to cease operations, or has no realistic 
alternative but to do so.

- 1 -
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• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity's internal control.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the entity's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the entity to cease to continue as a going concern.

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

MARKHAM, Canada
February 26, 2023

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the entity's financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

NORTON McMULLEN LLP

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

Chartered Professional Accountants, Licensed Public Accountants

- 2 -
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MORNINGSTAR CHRISTIAN FELLOWSHIP
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As at December 31, 2022 2021

ASSETS

Current
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 2) 640,695$      790,090$      
Receivables 7,107           3,443           
PSB rebate recoverable 18,062          14,043          
Investments (Note 4) 14,329          16,053          
Prepaid expenses 13,853          17,517          

694,046$      841,146$      

Capital Assets (Note 3) 3,035,352     3,084,933     

Investments (Note 4) 17,002          17,002          

3,746,400$   3,943,081$   

LIABILITIES 

Current 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 41,147$        59,979$        
Deferred rent -               9,103           

41,147$        69,082$        

FUND BALANCES (Note 5)
Unrestricted Fund 3,402,383$   3,406,081$   
Internally Restricted Funds 195,263        343,566        
Externally Restricted Funds 107,607        124,352        

3,705,253$   3,873,999$   

3,746,400$   3,943,081$   

Commitments (Note 6)

Out of balance                                 
Approved by the Board:

____________________________________  Director          ____________________________________  Director      

       See accompanying notes - 3 - 
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MORNINGSTAR CHRISTIAN FELLOWSHIP
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 
For the year ended December 31, 2022

Balances
Beginning Revenues Expenses

Transfers
(Note 6)

Balances 
Ending

Unrestricted Fund (Page 5) 3,406,081$  1,310,703$  1,359,279$  44,878$       3,402,383$  

Internally Restricted Funds
Board Designated 231,362$     -$             9,750$         (55,704)$      165,908$     
School of Music 22,124         5,975           5,060           -              23,039         
Sports Ministries 4,209           -              -              -              4,209           
Dramatic Productions 2,107           -              -              -              2,107           
Ajax 83,764         3,059           86,823         -              -              

343,566$     9,034$         101,633$     (55,704)$      195,263$     

Externally Restricted Funds
Short Term Missions 58,908$       2,236$         697$            -$             60,447$       
Benevolent 45,006         11,770         10,030         -              46,746         
Refugee Assistance 20,224         4,655           35,705         10,826         -              
Special Offerings 214              10,328         10,128         -              414              

124,352$     28,989$       56,560$       10,826$       107,607$     

TOTAL 3,873,999$  1,348,726$  1,517,472$  -$             3,705,253$  

PRIOR YEAR TOTAL 3,943,063$  1,514,248$  1,583,312$  -$             3,873,999$  

       See accompanying notes - 4 - 



79

MORNINGSTAR CHRISTIAN FELLOWSHIP
STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS - UNRESTRICTED FUND
For the year ended December 31, 2022 2021

REVENUES
Contributions - envelopes 1,221,936$   1,248,772$   
Rental income 61,477          40,637          
Miscellaneous 13,755          25,179          
Summer camp fees 6,839           195              
Interest income 5,496           1,506           
Contributions - loose 1,200           160              
Government assistance (Note 8) -               54,448          
Gain on disposal of equipment -               10,935          
Net change in unrealized gain/loss on investments -               3,153           

1,310,703$   1,384,985$   

EXPENSES
Wages and benefits 707,584$      909,681$      
Property and administration 156,531        119,527        
Amortization 150,183        156,764        
Church overhead 114,637        112,369        
Outreach 93,319          92,051          
Multi-site ministries 40,183          43,633          
Bank charges 17,831          18,947          
Summer camps 16,308          5,481           
Worship ministries 16,154          13,899          
Life and ministry development 14,405          10,535          
Children's ministries 8,008           6,194           
Student ministries 7,769           4,376           
Community life 6,842           3,356           
Loss on disposal of equipment 4,164           -               
Family ministries 3,637           3,624           
Net change in unrealized gain/loss on investments 1,724           -               

1,359,279$   1,500,437$   

DEFICIENCY OF REVENUES OVER EXPENSES (48,576)$       (115,452)$     

       See accompanying notes - 5 - 
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MORNINGSTAR CHRISTIAN FELLOWSHIP
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended December 31, 2022 2021

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS WERE PROVIDED BY (USED IN):

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenses

Unrestricted Fund (48,576)$       (115,452)$     
Board Designated Fund (9,750)          (9,277)          
School of Music 915              (630)             
Ajax (83,764)         50,598          
Benevolent 1,740           12,589          
Short Term Missions 1,539           2,839           
Refugee Assistance (31,050)         (9,795)          
Special Offerings 200              64                

(168,746)$     (69,064)$       

Items not affecting cash:
Amortization 150,183        156,764        
Loss (gain) on sale of equipment 4,164           (10,935)         
Net change in unrealized gains 1,724           (3,153)          

(12,675)$       73,612$        

Net change in non-cash working capital balances:
Receivables (3,664)$         7,833$          
PSB rebate recoverable (4,019)          20,215          
Prepaid expenses 3,664           (5,878)          
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (18,832)         (144,313)       
Deferred revenue (9,103)          9,103           

 (31,954)$       (113,040)$     

(44,629)$       (39,428)$       

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of capital assets (104,766)$     (78,887)$       
Proceeds on sale of equipment -               10,935          
Decrease in employee loans receivable -               12,899          

 (104,766)$     (55,053)$       

DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (149,395)$     (94,481)$       

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - Beginning 790,090        884,571        

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - Ending 640,695$      790,090$      

       See accompanying notes - 6 - 
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MORNINGSTAR CHRISTIAN FELLOWSHIP
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2022

PURPOSE OF THE ORGANIZATION

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a)  Fund Accounting

Resources are classified into funds according to their activities or objectives specified as follows:

Internally Restricted Funds represent funds set aside for future expenditures. Board Designated
Funds may be utilized at the Board’s discretion for expenditures not provided for in the annual
operating budget. Funds for the School of Music, Dramatic Productions, Sports Ministries, and
the Ajax site have been established to cover future shortfalls in their own respective areas.

Morningstar Christian Fellowship (the "Church") is an assembly of believers in Jesus Christ which exists
as a particular expression of the universal body of Christ with the purpose of offering acceptable worship
to God, instructing and edifying the people of God, and reaching out to unbelievers by means of
evangelism and social action in the community of Scarborough. Morningstar Christian Fellowship is
incorporated under the Ontario Corporations Act as a not-for-profit organization and is a registered
charity under the Income Tax Act.

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Canadian accounting standards
for not-for-profit organizations and include the following significant accounting policies:

The Unrestricted Fund reports net assets, donations and expenses related to the operations and
administration of the Church.

Externally Restricted Funds represent funds whereby the original contributions have been
restricted by donors.  The externally restricted funds are as follows:

The Special Offerings Fund represents restricted contributions designated for specific short-
term needs as approved by the board.

The Benevolent Fund represents restricted contributions designated to provide aid to those in
need.

The Short Term Mission Fund represents restricted contributions designated to be used in
certain short term mission trips.  

The Refugee Assistance Fund represents restricted contributions designated to be used for
refugee assistance.  

The Ajax fund was closed on April 1, 2022 following the Ajax site becoming independently
registered as a charity with Canada Revenue Agency.

      - 7 - 
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MORNINGSTAR CHRISTIAN FELLOWSHIP
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2022

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued

b) Revenue Recognition

c) Use of Estimates

Significant estimates include the estimated useful life of capital assets.

d) Cash and Cash Equivalents

e) Investments

Marketable Securities

Investments in Non-Publicly Traded Shares

Marketable securities, which are investments traded in an active market, are recorded at fair
value.

Government assistance is recognized when received and any conditions as to its use have been
met. 

The Church follows the restricted fund method whereby externally restricted contributions are
recognized in the fund corresponding to the purpose for which they were contributed. Restricted
contributions for which there is no fund are recorded in accordance with the deferral method.
Unrestricted contributions are recognized as revenues in the Unrestricted Fund.

Investment income, including dividends and interest earned on any restricted investments held in
support of a restricted fund is recognized as revenue in the appropriate fund when earned.
Investment income earned on unrestricted investments is recognized as revenue in the
unrestricted fund.

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with Canadian accounting standards for
not-for-profit organizations requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reported period. Actual results could
differ from the estimates used.

Investments in non-publicly traded shares are recorded at cost. A provision for write-down is
made when the decline in value of a particular investment is considered other than temporary.

Revenue from facilities rental and other miscellaneous services is recognized when services are
provided and collection is reasonably assured.

Cash and cash equivalents include cash and term deposits with a maturity period of three months
or less from the date of acquisition.
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MORNINGSTAR CHRISTIAN FELLOWSHIP
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2022

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued

f) Capital Assets

Building 3% declining balance
Furniture and equipment 20% declining balance
Leasehold improvements 10 years straight-line
Signage 3% declining balance

g) Impairment of Capital Assets

h) Contributed Services

i) Financial Instruments

Initial Measurement

Subsequent Measurement

Volunteers contribute significant hours per year to assist the Church in carrying out its activities.
Because of the difficulty of determining their fair value, contributed services are not recognized in
the financial statements.

When a tangible capital asset no longer contributes to an organization’s ability to provide goods
and services, or the value of future economic benefits or service potential associated with the
tangible capital asset is less than its net carrying amount, the net carrying amount of the tangible
capital asset is written down to the asset’s fair value or replacement cost.

The Church initially measures its financial assets and financial liabilities originated or exchanged
in arm’s length transactions at fair value.

Capital assets are recorded at cost. Amortization is being provided over the estimated useful life
of the assets using the following annual rates and methods:

Financial assets subsequently measured at amortized cost include cash and cash equivalents,
receivables, and investments. Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost include accounts
payable and accrued liabilities.

The Church subsequently measures all its financial assets and liabilities at cost or amortized cost,
except for investments in equity instruments that are quoted in an active market, which are
measured at fair value. Changes in fair value are recognized in income in the period incurred.
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MORNINGSTAR CHRISTIAN FELLOWSHIP
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2022

2. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents consist of bank balances holding unrestricted and restricted cash.

2022 2021

Unrestricted cash 337,825$    322,172$    
Restricted cash 302,870      467,918      

640,695$    790,090$    

3. CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital assets consist of the following:

2022 2021
Accumulated Net Book Net Book

Cost Amortization Value Value

Land 170,588$    -$            170,588$    170,588$    
Building 4,901,219   2,291,482   2,609,737   2,610,588   
Furniture and equipment 1,409,503   1,154,476   255,027      289,399      
Leasehold improvements 101,939      101,939      -              10,193        
Signage -              -              -              4,165          

6,583,249$ 3,547,897$ 3,035,352$ 3,084,933$ 

4. INVESTMENTS

Investments consist of the following: 

2022 2021

Current
Canadian equities, at fair value 14,329$      16,053$      

Long-Term
Private membership shares in DUCA, at cost 50$             50$             
DUCA private Class "A" Shares, at cost 16,952        16,952        

17,002$      17,002$      

Subsequent to year-end, the Church received notice that the leasehold improvements which are
located at the Tapscott site are to be removed and the location restored to its original condition. As
the Church has just begun the process of obtaining quotations for this restoration work,
management is unable to provide a reasonable estimate of the costs to be incurred.
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MORNINGSTAR CHRISTIAN FELLOWSHIP
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2022

5. FUND BALANCES

The composition of the fund balances is as follows:

2022 2021

UNRESTRICTED

Unrestricted Fund

Cash and cash equivalents 337,825$    322,172$    
Receivables 25,169        17,486        
Prepaid expenses 13,853        17,517        
Capital assets 3,035,352   3,084,933   
Investments 31,332        33,055        
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (41,147)       (59,979)       
Deferred rent -              (9,103)         

Fund Balance - Unrestricted Fund 3,402,384$ 3,406,081$ 

INTERNALLY RESTRICTED

Board Designated

Cash and cash equivalents 165,908$    231,362$    

Fund Balance – Board Designated 165,908$    231,362$    

School of Music

Cash and cash equivalents 23,039$      22,124$      

Fund Balance – School of Music 23,039$      22,124$      

Sports Ministries

Cash and cash equivalents 4,209$        4,209$        

Fund Balance – Sports Ministries 4,209$        4,209$        

Dramatic Productions

Cash and cash equivalents 2,107$        2,107$        

Fund Balance – Dramatic Productions 2,107$        2,107$        

Ajax

Cash and cash equivalents -$            83,764$      

Fund Balance – Ajax -$            83,764$      

TOTAL INTERNALLY RESTRICTED 195,263$    343,566$    
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MORNINGSTAR CHRISTIAN FELLOWSHIP
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2022

5. FUND BALANCES

The composition of the fund balances is as follows:

2022 2021

UNRESTRICTED

Unrestricted Fund
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Deferred rent -              (9,103)         

Fund Balance - Unrestricted Fund 3,402,384$ 3,406,081$ 

INTERNALLY RESTRICTED

Board Designated

Cash and cash equivalents 165,908$    231,362$    
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School of Music

Cash and cash equivalents 23,039$      22,124$      

Fund Balance – School of Music 23,039$      22,124$      

Sports Ministries

Cash and cash equivalents 4,209$        4,209$        

Fund Balance – Sports Ministries 4,209$        4,209$        

Dramatic Productions

Cash and cash equivalents 2,107$        2,107$        

Fund Balance – Dramatic Productions 2,107$        2,107$        

Ajax
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MORNINGSTAR CHRISTIAN FELLOWSHIP
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2022

5. FUND BALANCES - Continued

2022 2021

EXTERNALLY RESTRICTED

Benevolent Fund

Cash and cash equivalents 46,746$      45,006$      

Fund Balance – Benevolent Fund 46,746$      45,006$      

Short Term Missions Fund

Cash and cash equivalents 60,447$      58,908$      

Fund Balance – Short Term Missions Fund 60,447$      58,908$      

Refugee Assistance Fund

Cash and cash equivalents -$            20,224$      

Fund Balance – Refugee Assistance Fund -$            20,224$      

Special Offerings Fund

Cash and cash equivalents 414$           214$           

Fund Balance – Special Offerings Fund 414$           214$           

TOTAL EXTERNALLY RESTRICTED 107,607$    124,352$    

6. TRANSFERS

During the year the Board transferred $44,878 (2021 - $8,044) from Board Designated Funds to the
General Fund to assist with the purchase of capital assets and certain repairs.

During the year the Board transferred $Nil (2021 - $33,166) from the General Fund to the Ajax Fund 
to provide funding for the Ajax site.

During the year the Board transferred $10,826 (2021 - $Nil) from the Board Designated Fund to the
Refugee Assistance Fund to provide funding for expenses not otherwise funded.
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MORNINGSTAR CHRISTIAN FELLOWSHIP
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2022

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

a)

b)

c)

i)

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Church will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated
with financial liabilities. The Church is exposed to this risk mainly with respect to its accounts
payable and accrued liabilities. The Church manages this risk by managing its working capital and
by generating sufficient cash flow from operations. There has been no change in the assessment
of liquidity risk from the prior year. 

Credit Risk

Risks and Concentrations

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk:
currency risk, interest rate risk, and price risk. The Church is mainly exposed to price risk as
follows: 

Price Risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause financial loss for the
other party by failing to discharge an obligation. The Church’s main credit risks relates to its
employee loans receivable and receivables. There is no allowance for doubtful accounts in the
current or prior year. There has been no change in the assessment of credit risk from the prior
year.

The Church is exposed to various risks through its financial instruments. The following analysis
provides a summary of the Church’s exposure to and concentrations of risk at December 31, 2022:

Price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk
or currency risk), whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual
instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the
market. The Church is exposed to price risk through its investments in quoted shares. The
exposure to this risk fluctuates as the Church’s investments change from year to year.

Liquidity Risk

Market Risk
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MORNINGSTAR CHRISTIAN FELLOWSHIP
RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS
2023 BUDGET #DIV/0! 1.084987593

2023 Budget 
(53 Sundays)

2022 Actual
(52 Sundays)

2022 Budget 
(52 Sundays)

RECEIPTS
Weekly Average 24,057$                 23,499$                 24,750$                 

CONTRIBUTIONS
Envelopes 1,275,000$                1,221,936$                1,287,000$                
Loose 1,000                        1,200                        5,000                        
TOTAL CONTRIBUTIONS 1,276,000                  1,223,136                  1,292,000                  

OTHER RECEIPTS
Rental Income 10,048                      61,477                      42,798                      
Grant - summer camp 14,000                      14,000                      
Summer Camp Fees Earned 9,000                        6,839                        12,000                      
Investment income 6,000                        3,772                        6,600                        
Miscellaneous 13,005                      9,591                        10,000                      
TOTAL OTHER RECEIPTS 52,053                      81,679                      85,398                      

TOTAL RECEIPTS 1,328,053$            1,304,815$            1,377,398$            

DISBURSEMENTS

SALARIES & BENEFITS
Ministry Directors 366,440$                   357,890$                   389,469$                   
Interns - Summer and Ministries 28,458                      14,721                      27,936                      
Ministries & Administrative Staff 166,854                    161,968                    160,470                    
Custodial Ministry 64,542                      42,244                      68,082                      
Bonus - Discretionary 11,000                      
Employee Benefits (incl. CPP, EI and EHT) 127,046                    130,760                    127,973                    
TOTAL - SALARIES & BENEFITS 764,340                    707,583                    773,930                    

CHURCH OVERHEAD
Insurance 13,800                      13,283                      11,550                      

Church Office 30,000                      29,943                      28,090                      

Fellowship Membership Fees 18,000                      18,000                      18,000                      
Computer & IT Expenses 16,667                      8,081                        15,951                      
Social Media 10,295                      7,737                        8,977                        
Professional Development 11,975                      2,617                        3,875                        
Legal and Audit 12,000                      10,914                      11,500                      
Pastors Travel 4,000                        2,113                        4,670                        
Telephone 14,580                      13,253                      11,912                      
Food Services 9,050                        8,695                        5,950                        
Guest and Members Services 1,700                        1,456                        2,200                        
TOTAL - CHURCH OVERHEAD 142,067                    116,092                    122,675                    

PROPERTY
Equipment Maintenance 33,200                      31,510                      27,220                      
Heat and Utilities 58,534                      52,338                      57,541                      
Building Maintenance 55,298                      51,570                      54,648                      
TOTAL - PROPERTY 147,032                    135,418                    139,409                    

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES 21,000                      81,000                      81,000                      
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MORNINGSTAR CHRISTIAN FELLOWSHIP
RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS
2023 BUDGET #DIV/0! 1.084987593

2023 Budget 
(53 Sundays)

2022 Actual
(52 Sundays)

2022 Budget 
(52 Sundays)

FINANCE
Bank Charges 19,880                      17,831                      19,880                      
TOTAL - FINANCE 19,880                      17,831                      19,880                      

MULTI-CHURCH MINISTRIES
Tapscott
  Overhead Expenses (incl. Lease, Utilities etc) 6,168                        40,183                      42,798                      
TOTAL MULTI-CHURCH MINISTRIES 6,168                        40,183                      42,798                      

WORSHIP MINISTRIES DIVISION
Honorarium (Preaching) 2,000                        1,400                        450                           
Honorarium (Music) 1,000                        507                           1,000                        
License, Membership & Subscriptions 7,114                        6,438                        6,406                        
Music - Choir 2,000                        1,066                        3,000                        

Instrumental Equipment Maintenance 3,500                        2,298                        3,500                        

Drama/Productions 5,250                        319                           4,000                        
Sound/Lighting/Camera 4,400                        3,391                        3,400                        
Special Events & Sundays 800                           736                           400                           
Décor 200                           200                           
TOTAL - WORSHIP MINISTRIES 26,264                      16,155                      22,356                      

LIFE & MINISTRY DEVELOPMENT
Student Assistance Fund 900                           900                           
Resource Centre 1,131                        196                           1,220                        
Stephen Ministry/Pastoral Care 7,250                        6,290                        5,000                        
Inward Ministries 5,100                        2,418                        3,800                        
Living Word 2,000                        1,297                        2,000                        
Discipleship Material 3,400                        2,749                        2,400                        
TOTAL - LIFE & MINISTRY DEV. 19,781                      12,950                      15,320                      
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MORNINGSTAR CHRISTIAN FELLOWSHIP
RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS
2023 BUDGET #DIV/0! 1.084987593

2023 Budget 
(53 Sundays)

2022 Actual
(52 Sundays)

2022 Budget 
(52 Sundays)

FINANCE
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MORNINGSTAR CHRISTIAN FELLOWSHIP
RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS
2023 BUDGET #DIV/0! 1.084987593

2023 Budget 
(53 Sundays)

2022 Actual
(52 Sundays)

2022 Budget 
(52 Sundays)

CHILDREN MINISTRIES
Morning Star Kids 6,200                        7,715                        5,200                        
Outreach/Midweek 3,800                        56                             7,800                        
Youth Library 300                           237                           400                           
TOTAL CHILDREN MINISTRIES 10,300                      8,008                        13,400                      

STUDENT MINISTRIES
Junior and Senior High 6,320                        3,210                        5,130                        
TOTAL STUDENT MINISTRIES 6,320                        3,210                        5,130                        

FAMILY MINISTRIES
Marriage and Family 1,140                        566                           2,140                        
Young Adults 5,270                        4,559                        3,230                        
Ladies Ministry 1,600                        1,505                        2,300                        
Men's Ministry 1,600                        1,564                        2,200                        
TOTAL  FAMILY MINISTRIES 9,610                        8,194                        9,870                        

SUMMER CAMPS
Kids Summer Camps 15,400                      14,955                      15,400                      
Sports / Dance Summer Camps -                            1,353                        3,000                        
TOTAL SUMMER CAMPS 15,400                      16,308                      18,400                      

OUTREACH DIVISION
Evangelism
  Advertising/Promo (Holy Week) 940                           940                           
  Special Outreach 4,100                        2,211                        4,600                        
  Alpha Ministry 10,326                      2,600                        
  Bridge Builders 5,300                        863                           4,180                        

20,666                      3,074                        12,320                      
Missions
  Missionary Support 111,075                    90,245                      94,750                      

TOTAL - OUTREACH DIVISION 131,741                    93,319                      107,070                    

COMMUNITY LIFE DIVISION
Connections 2,300                        1,463                        2,300                        
LaFFers 5,850                        5,379                        3,860                        
TOTAL - COMMUNITY LIFE DIVISION 8,150                        6,842                        6,160                        

TOTAL DISBURSEMENTS 1,328,053$            1,263,093$            1,377,398$            

NET SURPLUS (DEFICIT) 0$                         41,722$                 -$                      

Church Admin % 57.55% 54.23% 56.19%

RECONCILIATION:
DEFICIENCY per audited financials (48,576)$                   
Amortization per audited financials 150,183                    

CAPEX included under Property & administration 
in the audited financials 21,112                      

CAPEX shown above (81,000)                     
rounding off 3                               
NET SURPLUS (DEFICIT) as per above 41,722$                    
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MORNINGSTAR CHRISTIAN FELLOWSHIP
STATEMENT OF RESTRICTED - External Funds
2023 BUDGET 

2023 Budget 2022 Actual 2022 Budget

BENEVOLENT FUND
Balance at beginning of the year 46,746$         45,006$         45,006$         

Contributions during the year 14,000 11,770 20,000
   Benevolent gifts during the year (18,000)          (10,030)          (18,000)          
Balance at end of the year 42,746           46,746           47,006           

SHORT TERM MISSION FUND
Balance at beginning of the year 60,447           58,908           58,908           

Contributions during the year 1,000             2,236 5,000             
Expenses during the year (1,000)            (697) -                 

Balance at end of the year 60,447           60,447           63,908           

REFUGEE FUND 
Balance at beginning of the year -                 20,224           20,224           

Contributions during the year -                 4,655             23,000           
Transfer from Board Designated Fund 10,826           
Expenses during the year -                 (35,705)          (43,000)          

Balance at end of the year -                 -                 224                

SPECIAL OFFERING FUND
Balance at beginning of year 414$              214$              214$              

Contributions during the year (see note below) 10,328
Expenses during the year (Ukraine Relief Fund) (10,128)

Balance at end of the year 414                414                214                

BALANCE of RESTRICTED External Funds 103,607$     107,607$     111,352$     
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MORNINGSTAR CHRISTIAN FELLOWSHIP
STATEMENT OF RESTRICTED - External Funds
2023 BUDGET 

2023 Budget 2022 Actual 2022 Budget

BENEVOLENT FUND
Balance at beginning of the year 46,746$         45,006$         45,006$         

Contributions during the year 14,000 11,770 20,000
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BALANCE of RESTRICTED External Funds 103,607$     107,607$     111,352$     
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MORNINGSTAR CHRISTIAN FELLOWSHIP
STATEMENT OF RESTRICTED - Internal Funds
2023 BUDGET 

2023 Budget 2022 Actual 2022 Budget

BOARD DESIGNATED FUNDS
Balance at beginning of the year 165,908$       231,362$     231,362$       
  Transfer from Unrestricted Fund 40,000 0
  Transfer to Refugee Assistance Fund (10,826)
  Board-approved discretionary bonus for staff (9,750)
  Capital expenditure - additional (44,878)
Balance at end of the year 205,908         165,908       231,362         

CAPITAL ASSET RESERVE FUND
Balance at beginning of the year 0 0 0

  Transfers from General Fund during the year 21,000           81,000         81,000           

  Capital expenditures for the year (21,000)          (81,000)        (81,000)          
Balance at end of the year -                 -               -                 

SCHOOL OF MUSIC
Balance at beginning of the year 23,039 22,124 22,124
  Registration fees earned during the year 6,000             5,975           5,500             
  Expenses during the year (5,200)            (5,060)          (5,225)            
Balance at end of the year 23,839           23,039         22,399           

DRAMATIC PRODUCTION
Balance at beginning of the year 2,107 2,107           2,107
  Expenses during the year -               
Balance at end of the year 2,107             2,107           2,107             

SPORTS MINISTRIES
Balance at beginning of the year 4,209 4,209           4,209
  Expenses during the year -               
Balance at end of the year 4,209             4,209           4,209             

AJAX
Balance at beginning of the year -                 83,763         83,763           

Contributions from Ajax congregants -               

Expenses of Ajax Lighthouse during the year -                 (83,763) (83,763)          
Balance at end of the year -                 -               -                 

BALANCE OF RESTRICTED Internal Funds 236,063$     195,263$   260,077$     
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MORNINGSTAR CHRISTIAN FELLOWSHIP
MISSIONARY SUPPORT
2023 Budget

Agency Missionary 2023 Monthly 
Budget 

 2023 Annual 
Budget   Change  Total 

 2022 
Annual 
Budget  

Adam House Adam House 700             8,400            -             8,400                 8,400         
Daystar Native Workers Mary-Lue Mahaffey 250             3,000            -             3,000                 3,000         
Exodus Global Alliance Brian Kliewer -              -                (1,200)        1,200         

FEB International
Bechara & Roula Kurkafi (LeadersFor 
Middle East & Muslim Church Plant in 
Canada)

417             5,000            -             5,001                 5,000         

FEB International Dominica Leaders For 167             2,000            -             2,001                 2,000         
FEB International H.Muhtar (LeadersFor) 100             1,200            -             1,200                 1,200         
FEB International Indian LeadersFor Training - JC 469             5,625            (1,875)        7,500                 7,500         
FEB International Ricardo Castro - FEB Spain 300             3,600            -             3,600                 3,600         

FEB International Johnson Hsu, Director of Community 
Engagement at MCF 2,167          26,000          26,000       -                     

FEB International Philippines LeadersFor 250             3,000            -             3,000                 3,000         

FEBCC Association d'Églises baptistes 
évangéliques au Québec 1 260             3,125            -             3,120                 3,125         

FEBCC Association d'Églises baptistes 
évangéliques au Québec 2 260             3,125            -             3,120                 3,125         

FEBCC Église Le Sentier Gatineau, Alexander 
Farley 208             2,500            -             2,496                 2,500         

FEBCC McTaire & Suzanne Wall 375             4,500            -             4,500                 4,500         
Open Doors Open Doors 50               600                -             600                    600            
Partners International David Umune 200             2,400            600            1,800                 1,800         
Partners International Dave & Colleen Hunt 200             2,400            -             2,400                 2,400         
Power to Change Dan Sherman 50               600                -             520                    600            

Power to Change Athletes in Action - Kevin & Christine 
Cuz 150             1,800            -             1,800                 1,800         

SIM Peter & Rhonda Koropatwa 150             1,800            -             1,800                 1,800         
TEAM David Prince -              -                (1,200)        900                    1,200         

Training Institutions Hope Outreach of Canada /Bethlehem 
Bible Collge 500             6,000            -             6,000                 6,000         

Training Institutions Heritage Bible Collge 200             2,400            -             2,400                 2,400         
Urban Promise Julius Naredo 200             2,400            -             2,400                 2,400         
Arabic Ministries Chadi Farah 150             1,800            -             1,800                 1,800         
Youth Unlimited Calvin Russell 100             1,200            -             1,200                 1,200         
Youth Unlimited Charlene Boreland 75               900                -             900                    900            
Ajax Lighthouse Oliver Ipwanshek -              -                (6,000)        6,000                 6,000         

-                     
-                     -             

7,948          95,375          16,325       79,050       
MISCELLANEOUS
Honorarium 83               1,000            -             -                     1,000         
Misc/Meals 142             1,700            -             632                    1,700         
Missions Training Conference 83               1,000            -             -                     1,000         
Short Term Service 417             5,000            -             5,400                 5,000         
Travel - Leaders For Cohort 583             7,000            -             6,756                 7,000         

1,308          15,700          -             -                     15,700       
-                     

9,256          111,075        16,325       90,245               94,750       

2022 Actuals



95

NOTES



7601 Sheppard Avenue East. (at Morningside)  
Scarborough, ON, M1B 2Y7

 Tel: 416-281-4138  |  Fax: 416-281-0860   |  www.morningstarfellowship.ca


